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Dear Valued Shareholder:

During Fiscal 2003, we succeeded in resolving the Internal Revenue Service matter, which had been our
number one, immediate goal as of last fiscal year end. As a result, the Company recorded a non-operating
gain of $7.7 million during the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003, significantly reducing its working capital
deficiency and stockholders’ deficit. Having concluded this settlement, we believe we are better
positioned to succeed in our marketing efforts, which we have accelerated during the past few months.
Among our accomplishments in 2003, we also had the immense pleasure of welcoming Steven J. Scheidt
to the newly created position of Vice President, Private Sector Sales. Mr. Scheidt has been primarily
responsible for leading the Company’s national sales growth initiatives in commercial markets. Further, it
has been our great pleasure to have the added oversight, counseling, and direction that our two new,
independent directors, Dr. Howard A. Savin and Mr. Eugene L. Froelich, have provided to the
Company’s management during Fiscal 2003, with Dr. Savin having joined the Board in June 2002 and
Mr. Froelich having served since January 2003. We look forward to their continued support as members
of the Company’s Board of Directors and their service as sole members of the Company’s Audit and
Compensation Committees.

Without debate, CompCare's track record of success and high level of customer satisfaction have attracted
industry attention and earned us respect as an emerging market leader. The commitment of our employees
to consistently exceed our customers' performance expectations has resulted in CompCare winning
notable managed behavioral healthcare contracts in Indiana and Michigan in 2003. Moreover, based on
our dedicated efforts to achieving excellence in all that we do, CompCare has received invitations from
current and prospective clients to bid on larger contracts.

Further, CompCare's Southeast region has received Full Accreditation from the National Committee for
Quality Assurance (NCQA). NCQA, a private, nonprofit organization, is the leading accrediting body for
U.S. healthcare organizations. This achievement, which is our second full accreditation award, validates
the work of our valued employees. '

If you walk the halls at any one of CompCare's regional operations centers, we believe you'll come to find
that there is a distinct sense of purpose and drive that helps to define who we are. Responsible for
administering to 1.2 million lives through our network of approximately 12,000 providers, our staff
recognizes that they serve as a vital link between those who require behavioral health treatment and the
highly trained people who can deliver it. Our employees appreciate that caring about our providers, our
members and each other makes an enormous difference in how CompCare is perceived on the "outside"
and clearly emphasizes the basis for our corporate motto: Comprehensive Care - A Company With A
Conscience.

In keeping with our business practices, it is our intention to ensure our shareholders - also valued
members of the CompCare team - receive the same level of care and attention that we afford all those that
interact with us. We recognize that the investment you've made in our Company reflects that you support
our vision and share our optimism for the future of Comprehensive Care. We intend to continue working
very hard to earn your long-term support and reward you with enhanced value from your investment.

S P Ede ). Fardo

Mary Jane Johnson Robert J. Landis
President and Chief Executive Officer, Chairman, Chief Financial Officer,
and Director ' and Treasurer
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COMPREHENSIVE CARE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

PARTI
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
ORGANIZATIONAL HISTORY
Comprehensive Care Corporatibn® (referred to herein as the “Company”, “CompCare” *", “we”, “our” or

“us”) is a Delaware Corporation organized in 1969. Unless the context otherwise requires, all references to the
Company include the Company’s principal operating subsidiary, Comprehensive Behavioral Care, Inc.SM @
(“CBC”) and subsidiary corporations.

CompCare, through its operating subsidiaries, manages the delivery of psychiatric and substance abuse
services to commercial, Medicare, and Medicaid members on behalf of employers, health plans, including health
maintenance organizations (“HMOs”) and preferred provider organizations (“PPOs”), government organizations,
third-party claims administrators, and commercial and other group purchasers of behavioral healthcare services.
Current services include a broad spectrum of inpatient and outpatient mental health and substance abuse therapy,
counseling, and supportive interventions.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

e During June 2003, we implemented one new client contract to provide behavioral healthcare benefits to
approximately 97,000 members in Michigan. We estimate that annual revenues from this contract will be $1.5
million.

o The State of Texas has passed legislation that will reduce the amount of funds allocated to our clients to cover
behavioral healthcare services to Medicaid and Children’s Health Insurance Program (“CHIP”) recipients in the
State of Texas. Such legislation is subject to pending bills that, if passed, could restore some of the benefits to
these programs. Under the recently passed legislation, the outpatient behavioral healthcare benefits available to
adult Medicaid and CHIP recipients will be provided by the HMOs and their subcontractors, including the
Company, on a very limited basis while the inpatient benefits for CHIP recipients may not be covered by the
HMOs and their subcontractors. For the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003, we had operating revenue of $3.7
million and $4.5 million, respectively, specific to contracts covering Texas CHIP and Texas Medicaid
recipients. These changes to Texas Medicaid and CHIP programs could have a material, adverse impact on our
operations. However, we believe certain of our clients will continue to require the types of services we provide
to mitigate their exposure to treat serious medical conditions that may result from the lack of adequate
behavioral healthcare benefits. We are closely monitoring developments in Texas, but currently cannot predict
what financial impact, if any, these changes may have on our business.

BUSINESS GENERAL

The services we provide are delivered through management service agreements (“MSOs”), administrative
service agreements (“ASOs™), and capitated contracts. MSOs and ASOs are contractual obligations under which the
Company does not assume any financial risk or responsibility for the member’s behavioral health care costs. We
may provide various managed care functions under MSO and ASO arrangements, including clinical care
management, provider network development, customer service, claims processing, and information systems
reporting. The scope of services under MSO arrangements is slightly narrower in comparison to those services we
perform under ASO arrangements. Under capitated contracts, the primary payer of heaithcare services prepays us a
fixed, per member per month (“PMPM?”) fee for covered psychiatric and substance abuse services regardless of
actual member utilization and the Company assumes the financial risk for the member’s health care costs. Programs
are contracted through inpatient facilities as well as through experienced outpatient practitioners.

We currently manage programs through which services are provided to recipients in fourteen states.
Current programs and services include fully integrated, capitated behavioral healthcare services, Employee
Assistance Programs (EAPs), case management/utilization review services, administrative services management
(ASOQs), provider sponsored health plan development, behavioral corrections programs, preferred provider network
development, management and physician advisor reviews and overall care management services. We also provide
prior and concurrent authorization for physician-prescribed psychotropic medications for a major Medicaid HMO in

) CompCare is a registered trademark of Comprehensive Care Corporation.
@ Comprehensive Behavioral Care, Inc. is a registered service mark of the Company.
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Michigan under that state's mandated pharmacy management program. Members are generaily directed to
CompCare by their employer, health plan, or physician and receive an initial authorization for an assessment. Based
upon the initial assessment, a treatment plan is established for the member. Fully integrated capitated lives (i.e.
where the company has contractual, financial risk) totaled approximately 789,000 and 805,000 at May 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively. ASO lives were approximately 337,000 and 375,000 at May 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
EAP lives were approximately 2,000 at May 31, 2003 and 2002.

Our objective is to provide easily accessible, high quality behavioral healthcare services and products and
to manage costs through measures such as the monitoring of hospital inpatient admissions and the review of
authorizations for various types of outpatient therapy. The goal is to combine access to quality behavioral
healthcare services with effective management controls in order to ensure the most cost-effective use of healthcare
resources.

SOURCES OF REVENUE

We provide managed behavioral healthcare and substance abuse services to recipients, primarily through
subcontracts with HMOs who have historically carved out these functions to managed behavioral healthcare
organizations (“MBHOs”) like CompCare. We generally receive a negotiated amount on a per member per month
(“PMPM”) or capitated basis in exchange for providing these services. We then contract directly with behavioral
healthcare providers who receive a pre-determined, fee-for-service rate or case rate. Behavioral healthcare providers
include psychiatrists, clinical psychologists, therapists, other licensed healthcare professionals, and hospitals. As of
May 31, 2003, we have approximately 12,000 behavioral healthcare practitioners in our network who are primarily
located in the five states in which the Company has its principal contracts. Under such full-risk capitation
arrangements, profit is a function of utilization and the amount of claims payments made to our network providers.
Alternatively, we may subcontract with a provider company on a sub-capitated basis. In cases where we have made
sub-capitation arrangements, the outside company manages service delivery through CompCare’s approved and
credentjaled network that is guided by stringent quality standards.

During Fiscal 2003, we provided services under capitated arrangements for commercial, Medicare,
Medicaid, and Children’s Health Insurance Program patients in Florida and Texas, commercial and Medicaid
patients in Michigan, Medicaid patients in Connecticut, and commercial patients in Arizona, Georgia, Indiana,
Kentucky, Minnesota, New York, North Carolina, Ohio, South Carolina, and Wisconsin.

In Fiscal 2003, our new business included two commercial contracts in Indiana, two new Medicaid
contracts in Michigan, one new Medicare contract in Texas, and contracts with one new client in Florida that cover
individuals under both commercial and Medicaid plans. Additionally, we added one new EAP client with
membership in eight states. We perform periodic reviews of our current client contracts to determine profitability.

In the event a contract is not profitable, we may seek to revise the terms of the contract or to terminate the agreement
in accordance with the specific contract terms.

GROWTH STRATEGY

Our objective is to expand our presence in both existing and new managed behavioral healthcare markets
by obtaining new contracts with health plans, corporations, government agencies, and other payers through
CompCare’s reputation of providing quality managed behavioral healthcare services with the most cost-effective use
of healthcare resources. Our principal means for pursuing public sector business is through the submission of
proposals in response to formal, competitive bidding proceedings that are initiated by health plans or government
agencies. We intend, where feasible, to expand our commercial business during the upcoming fiscal year through
new marketing initiatives directed at employer groups and, also, HMOs that contract directly with employers.
Additionally, we continue to develop products that will bring our core competencies to new market areas such as
child welfare, behavioral pharmacy management and preferred provider organization product management for health
plans and self-insured employers. The success of our growth strategy is dependent upon our ability to competitively
bid on new contracts, comply with conditions contained in requests for proposals, obtain required licenses, if any, in
new markets, establish provider networks in new markets and negotiate favorable agreements with our providers.

COMPETITION

The behavioral healthcare industry is very competitive and provides products and services that are price
sensitive. We believe that there are approximately 150 managed behavioral healthcare companies providing service
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for an estimated 227 million covered lives in the United States. Several competitors have revenues, financial
resources, and membership substantially larger than ours. We also compete with small local and regional companies
at times. Competition is built around pricing, the overall quality of service provided, the extent and quality of the
provider network, and the technical capacity of the behavioral healthcare organization.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION

REGULATORY MONITORING AND COMPLIANCE

CompCare is subject to extensive and evolving state and federal regulations relating to the nation’s mental
health system as well as changes in Medicaid and Medicare reimbursement that could have an effect on the
profitability of our contracts. These regulations range from licensure and compliance with regulations related to
insurance companies and other risk-assuming entities, to licensure and compliance with regulations related to
healthcare providers. These laws and regulations may vary considerably among states. As a result, CompCare may
be subject to the specific regulatory approach adopted by each state for regulation of managed care companies and
for providers of behavioral healthcare treatment services. The Company holds licenses or certificates to perform
utilization review and third party administrator (“TPA”) services in certain states. Certain of the services provided
by our managed behavioral healthcare subsidiaries may be subject to such licensing requirements in other states.
There can be nc assurance that additional utilization review or TPA licenses will not be required or, if required, that
CompCare will qualify to obtain such licenses. In many states, entities that assume risk under contract with licensed
insurance companies or health plans who retain ultimate financial responsibility have not been considered by state
regulators to be conducting an insurance or HMO business. As a result, we have not sought licensure as either an
insurer or HMO in certain states. If the regulatory positions of these states were to change, our business could be
materially affected until such time as CompCare meets the regulatory requirements. Currently, we cannot quantify
the potential effects of additional regulation of the managed care industry, but such costs will have an adverse effect
on future operations to the extent that they are not able to be recouped in future managed care contracts.

As of May 31, 2003, we managed approximately 813,000 lives in connection with behavioral and
substance abuse services covered through Medicaid and/or Children’s Health Insurance Programs (“CHIPS™) in
Connecticut, Florida, Michigan and Texas. Any changes in Medicaid funding could ultimately affect our
reimbursement and overall profitability. We are aware that the State of Texas has passed legislation that will reduce
the amount of funds allocated to our clients to cover behavioral healthcare services to CHIP recipients in the State of
Texas. Such legislation is subject to pending bills that, if passed, could restore some of the benefits to these
programs. Under the recently passed legislation, the outpatient behavioral healthcare benefits available to adult
Medicaid and CHIP recipients will be provided by the HMOs and their subcontractors, inciuding the Company, on a
very limited basis while the inpatient benefits for CHIP recipients may not be covered by the HMOs and their
subcontractors. For the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003, we had operating revenue of $3.7 million and $4.5 million,
respectively, specific to contracts covering Texas CHIP and Texas Medicaid recipients. These changes to Texas
Medicaid and CHIP programs could have a material, adverse impact on our operations. However, we believe
certain of our clients will continue to require the types of services we provide to mitigate their exposure to treat
serious medical conditions that may result from the lack of adequate behavioral healthcare benefits. We are closely
monitoring developments in Texas, but currently cannot predict what financial impact, if any, these changes may
have on our business.

CompCare is subject to the requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of
1996 (“HIPAA™). The purpose of the HIPAA provisions is to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the
healthcare system through standardization of the electronic data interchange of certain administrative and financial
transactions and, also, to protect the security and privacy of protected health information. Entities subject to HIPAA
include some healthcare providers and all healthcare plans. To meet the specific requirements of HIPAA, we will
incur costs to insure the adequacy and security of our healthcare information system and communication networks.
Additionally, we will incur costs to implement a new clinical information system that will process the specific
transaction codes required by HIPAA for claims, payment, enroliment, eligibility, or to become compliant with
security and privacy rules, which may be more stringent for providers of certain behavioral healthcare services (see
“Management Information Systems” below). The expected timetable for us to be compliant is currently October
2003 for transaction code changes due to our October 2002 filing of a formal compliance plan. The Company has
met the deadline for compliance with the privacy rules, which was April 14, 2003. Additionally, we have filed our
Electronic Health Care Transactions and Code Sets Standards Model Compliance Plan with the Centers for
Medicare and Medicaid Services. While these efforts will be ongoing, we expect to meet all compliance rules and
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timetables with respect to the HIPAA regulations. Failure to do so may result in penalties and have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s ability to retain its customers or to gain new business.

ACCREDITATION

To develop standards that effectively evaluate the structure and function of medical and quality
management systems in managed care organizations, the Nationa! Committee on Quality Assurance, (“NCQA”) has
developed an extensive review and development process in conjunction with the managed care industry, healthcare
purchasers, state regulators, and consumers. The Standards for Accreditation of Managed Behavioral Healthcare
Organizations used by NCQA reviewers to evaluate a managed behavioral healthcare organization address the
following areas: quality improvement; utilization management; credentialing; members’ rights and responsibilities;
preventative-care guidelines; and medical records. These standards validate that a managed behavioral healthcare
organization is founded on principles of quality and is continuously improving the clinical care and services it
provides. NCQA utilizes Health Plan Employer Data and Information Set (“HEDIS™), which is a core set of
performance measurements developed to respond to complex but clearly defined employer needs as standards for
patient care and customer satisfaction. CompCare’s Southeast Region operation was awarded a one-year NCQA
accreditation in July 1999 and Full Accreditation in December 2001, Effective July 22, 2002, CompCare’s Full
Accreditation award extends the NCQA accreditation to July 22, 2005 and covers membership in Connecticut,
Florida, Georgia, and Michigan. Full Accreditation is granted for a period of three years to those plans that have
excellent programs for continuous quality improvement and that meet NCQA''s rigorous standards.

We believe our NCQA accreditation is beneficial to our clients and their members we serve. Additionally,
NCQA accreditation may be an important consideration to our prospective clients.

MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEMS

We currently use a fully integrated, three-tier, managed care information system. During recent months,
we determined that a significant investment would be required to upgrade our current version of this software to
comply with HIPAA regulations. As a result, during Fiscal 2003, we requested and reviewed several proposals from
various vendors and subsequently entered into a Letter of Intent with a new vendor to design a new, customized
management information system at a cost below the current vendor’s estimate that will enable us to meet HIPAA
compliance. Additionally, the new software is expected to streamline the Company’s entire clinical and claims
functions and offer service improvements to our participating providers. The new vendor will also assist CompCare

staff in developing an interim solution to meet the HIPAA compliance rules that become effective in October 2003,
" before the expected “go-live” date for the new system of February 1, 2004. We expect to incur approximately $0.4
million of one-time costs to customize the new system and activate the licenses needed for this and other, related
third-party software. We believe the system currently being designed will readily support continued growth and
meet our future business needs.

As is the case with our current system, the new system will allow all CompCare locations to connect to the
Company’s frame relay telecommunications network, allowing automated call-path routing for overlap coverage at
peak call times. Major care management functions such as information assessment, service plans, initial
authorizations, extension requests, termination summaries, appeals, credentialing, billing, and claim/encounter
processing are supported by built-in decision aids to correctly adjudicate patient-specific transactions.

ADMINISTRATION AND EMPLOYEES

Our executive and administrative offices are located in Tampa, Florida, where we maintain operations,
business development, accounting, reporting and information systems, and provider and member service functions.
We currently employ 120 full-time and part-time employees.

MARKETING AND SALES

Our business development staff is responsible for generating new sales leads and for preparing proposals
and responses to formal commercial and public sector Requests for Proposals (“RFPs”). The Company’s Chief
Development Officer manages marketing initiatives, along with the Company’s President and Chief Executive
Officer, Regional and administrative operations personnel strengthen the Company’s marketing efforts by providing
a local presence. Sales expectations are integrated into the performance requirements for executive staff and local
sales personnel.




COMPREHENSIVE CARE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The Company’s shareholder website is www.compcare-shareholders.com. The Company makes available
free of charge, through a link to the Securities and Exchange Commission’s (“SEC”) internet site our annual,
quarterly, and current reports, and any amendments to these reports, as well as any beneficial ownership reports of
officers and directors filed electronically on Forms 3, 4, and 5. All such reports will be available as soon as
reasonably practicable after electronically filing such reports with the SEC. Information contained on our website or
linked through our website is not part of this report on Form 10-K.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance is typically defined as the system that allocates duties and authority among a
company's stockholders, board of directors and management. The stockholders elect the board and vote on
extraordinary matters; the board is the company's governing body, responsible for hiring, overseeing and evaluating
management, particularly the Chief Executive Officer (CEO); and management runs the company's day-to-day
operations. Our certificate of incorporation provides for a staggered board of five directors separated into three
classes. Qur Board of Directors currently consists of four directors. The Company is in an ongoing process to try to
fiil the one remaining vacancy. The current Board members include two independent directors. The primary
responsibilities of the Board of Directors are oversight, counseling and direction to the Company's management in
the long-term interests of the Company and its stockholders. The Board's detailed responsibilities include: (a)
selecting, regularly evaluating the performance of, and approving the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer
and other senior executives; (b) reviewing and, where appropriate, approving the Company's major financial
objectives, strategic and operating plans and actions; (c) overseeing the conduct of the Company's business to
evaluate whether the business is being properly managed; and (d) overseeing the processes for maintaining the
Company's integrity with regard to its financial statements and other public disclosures and compliance with law and
ethics. The Board of Directors has delegated to the Chief Executive Officer, working with the Company's other
executive officers, the authority and responsibility for managing the Company's business in a manner consistent with
the Company's standards and practices, and in accordance with any specific plans, instructions or directions of the
Board. The Chief Executive Officer and management are responsible for seeking the advice and, in appropriate
situations, the approval of the Board with respect to extraordinary actions to be undertaken by the Company.

Audit Committee

The Board of Directors has constituted an Audit Committee comprised of two independent directors, as that
term is defined under the General Rules and Regulations under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(the "Act"). Mr. Eugene L. Froelich is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and is the Audit Committee Financial
Expert. The Audit Committee has responsibility for the appointment, compensation, retention and oversight of the
Company's independent auditors; establishing procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints
regarding accounting, internal controls or auditing matters, and procedures for the submission of confidential,
anonymous concerns by employees regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters.

The Audit Committee has, as required by the Act and Section 301 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
adopted a 'whistleblower policy’ providing for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by the
Company regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters and the confidential, anonymous
submission by employees of the Company of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters.

Code of Conduct

The Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Conduct applicable to all officers, directors and employees of
the Company which provides, among other things, for honest and ethical conduct; avoidance of conflicts of interest,
including the disclosure of any material transaction or relationship that could be expected to give rise to a conflict;
full, fair, accurate, and timely and understandable disclosure in reports filed by the Company with the Securities and
Exchange Commission; internal reporting of Code of Conduct violations; and accountability for any violations.
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Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee reviews the Company's compensation programs and exercises authority with
respect to the payment of salaries and incentive compensation to the Company's executive officers. The
Compensation Committee also administers the Company's 1995 and 2002 Stock Option Plans.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We do not own any real property. The following table sets forth certain information regarding our leased
properties as of May 31, 2003. All leases are triple net leases, under which CompCare bears all costs of operations,
including insurance, taxes, and utilities.

Monthly
Lease Rental
Name and Location Expires (in Dollars)
Corporate Headquarters, Regional, Administrative,
And Other Offices
Tampa, Florida, Corporate Headquarters and Southeastern
Regional OffiCes .......ooveerveeirieieertciereer e 2006 $ 22,813
Grand Prairie, TeXas.....cvvivreierreiorireiteresreiene s crre e e s s 2004 6,474
Bloomfield Hills, Michigan......ccc.coccoveerrvnionveerereeseceesenen 2004 9,237

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We had previously reported that the Company had filed an “Offer in Compromise” (“Offer”) with the
Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) to settle a tax dispute that began in August 1998 when the IRS notified the
Company that it was disallowing $12.4 million of tax refunds previously received by the Company specific to its
Fiscal 1985 and 1986 income tax returns as amended. In January 2003, the Company reported the IRS had accepted
its Offer, which gave the Company the option of paying approximately $2.6 million over two years or paying
approximately $2.2 million within 90 days of the letter of acceptance in addition to a $50,000 down payment made
by the Company at the time its Offer was submitted to IRS. In February 2003, the Company concluded the IRS
settlement by making a cash payment of approximately $2.2 million to the IRS to fully settle the previously accrued
tax liability of $12.1 million. Coincident with the IRS settlement, the Company reached an agreement with its
former tax advisor requiring the tax advisor to refund $525,000 of the original $2.5 million of fees previously paid
by the Company. The Company received the $525,000 refund in February 2003.

As a result of the resolution of this matter, the Company extinguished the $12.1 million liability and
recorded a non-operating gain in the quarter ended February 28, 2003 of approximately $7.7 million. The gain is net
of settlement expenses consisting primarily of professional fees and $2.0 million of the aforementioned, unrecovered
tax advisor fees. The gain represented $1.97 earnings per share ($1.77 diluted earnings per share). No taxable
income resulted from the settlement of the liability. Additionally, the IRS settlement requires that the Federal net
operating loss carryforwards of approximately $42.0 million resulting from losses incurred in fiscal years ended
May 31, 1995 through May 31, 2001, and a minimum tax credit carryover of approximately $0.7 million, are no
longer available to the Company.

From time to time, the Company and its subsidiaries may be parties to and their property is subject to ordinary,
routine litigation incidental to their business, in which case claims may exceed insurance policy limits and the
Company or any one of its subsidiaries may have exposure to a liability that is not covered by insurance.
Management is not aware of any such lawsuits that could have a material adverse impact on the Company’s
financial statements.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

During the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by this report, no matters were submitted to a vote of
security holders of the Company.
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PART IL

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR COMPANY’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

Our Common Stock is traded on the Over The Counter Bulletin Board (“OTC-BB”) under the symbol
CHCR. The following table sets forth the range of high and low closing prices for the Common Stock, as
reported by the OTC-BB, for the fiscal quarters indicated:

Price

F1SCAL YEAR HIGH Low

2003 FIRST QUARTER $1.65 $0.75
SECOND QUARTER 1.01 0.32
THIRD QUARTER 2.38 0.65
FOURTH QUARTER $3.05 $2.01

2002 FIRST QUARTER $0.61 $0.25
SECOND QUARTER 0.55 0.24
THIRD QUARTER 0.96 0.43
FOURTH QUARTER $1.85 $0.70

(a) As of September 3, 2003, the Company had 1,416 common stockholders of record.

(b) The Company did not pay any cash dividends on its Common Stock during any quarter of Fiscal 2003,
2002, or 2001 and does not contemplate the initiation of payment of any cash dividends in the foreseeable
future (see ITEM 7. “MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS”).

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Prior to Fiscal 1993, CompCare principally engaged in the ownership, operation, and management of
psychiatric and substance abuse programs in company owned, leased, or unaffiliated hospitals. During Fiscal 1999,
we completed our plan to dispose of our hospital business segment.

Fiscal 2003 results include a $7.7 million, non-operating gain related to the IRS settlement (see Note 13 —
“Income Taxes” to the audited, consolidated financial statements). Additionally, Fiscal 2003 results included a
$470,000 non-operating gain related to the Medi-Cal settlement (see Note 16 ~ “Commitments and Contingencies’
to the audited, consolidated financial statements). As a result, CompCare reported net income of $7.5 million, or
$1.91 earnings per share ($1.72 diluted eamings per share) and an operating loss of $608,000, for the year ended
May 31, 2003 compared to the net loss of $770,000, or $0.20 loss per share (basic and diluted), and an operating
loss of $774,000, for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002. Excluding the $8.2 million of non-operating gains from
net income would have resulted in a $729,000 net loss ($0.19 loss per basic and diluted share) for the fiscal year
ended May 31, 2003.

’

The selected consolidated financial data that follows should be read in conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements and accompanying notes appearing elsewhere in this report. Reclassifications of prior year
amounts have been made to conform to the current year’s presentation.
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STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:

Operating FeVeNUES ............ccooovieoriiireieirceeenc e,
Costs and expenses:
Healthcare operating eXpenses ...........c.c.ooeevermeeiersrneerecrnerns
General and administrative €Xpenses ..........occeeevrveercennnerienenns
Provision for (recovery of) doubtful accounts..........coecerenene.
Depreciation and amortization ...........ccecoveveerecvneeieerncnnenn,
REStIUCTUTING EXPENSES....vvevirrrerierirvererininenresresiniesiesesesnssensons

Operating loss from continuing operations before items shown

Other income (expenses):

Net gain on IRS settlement ...
Gain on settlement of other liability.........ccccoveeeenmeiiie s

Loss in connection with prepayment of note receivable .........
Gain on sale 0f ASSELS .....ceverreriiiiriiciicrerer s
L05s 01 5ale O @SSELS ....eveveeveeiti et
Reduction in accrued interest €Xpense ...........cccoveveevrinennan,
Other non operating iNCOME.........ccccermmerciermnorcinnireerrcrenennns
INtErest INCOMIE ...cveiuiiiereieriecre ettt ceree et s
INtErest EXPENSE...cci ettt et
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes
Income tax expense (benefit) .......cococeveveniveeniiiniececcn
Income (loss) from continuing operations...........c.cccoecvnenne...
Discontinued operations:
Loss from operations
Loss on disposal, including operating loss of $282....................
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in accounting
Principle........cooi
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle .............
Net income (10SS)........coocooiiirieniiiiiiniee e
Dividends on convertible Preferred Stock...........ccoinicnninn, .
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders ........
Basic earnings per share:
Income (loss) from continuing Operations.........c.cccoceervveeenenens
Discontinued operations:
L 0SS from Operations.........ccoeoverierirvireeireniae e e
L0sS 0 diSPOSAl....covviviriiirireiiese e
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle.................
Net income (10SS) ...oveviciiiiereeri ettt ener e
Diluted earnings per share:
Income (loss) from continuing OPerations.......c..cccveeveirvcereenenen
Discontinued operations:
L 0SS from Operations..........cooveevoeeeienirireeiseareseeenieeeeeseeene e
L0SS 0N AISPOSAL..eiiiieieiiiicririr e s
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle.................
Net iNCOME (0SS wovvvieniiiiiieriiii e ettt see e seesacereaes
BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Working capital (deficit) .......ccoocoiniiioiiii e
Total @SSELS ...ovviviriiiieecec e
Long-term debt.. ...t et
Long-term debt including current maturities and debentures.........
Stockholders’ deficit ........... ettt et

Year Ended May 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)

$ 32267 $§ 27625 $§ 18,192 $ 17,719 $ 39,029
29,201 24,625 15,326 15,801 29,778
3,459 3,544 3,842 6,974 9,148
20 (112) (439) (606) 1,641

195 342 656 794 1,037

- - (30) 831 600
32,875 28,399 19,355 23,794 42,204
(608) (774) (1,163) (6,075) (3,175
7,717 - -- .- -
470 - - -- --

- - (496) - -

4 - - 9 2

(%) - - ey €y

- -- 290 - --

34 40 332 204 41

47 88 163 399 309
(181 (178) (208)  (289) (281)
7,478 (824) (1,082) (5,753) (3,108)
20 1 35 13 (146)
7458 (825) (T117) (5,766) (2,962)
- - - - (334)
- = - - (698)
7,458 (825) (1,117) (5,766) (3,994)
- 55 — - -
7,458 (770) (1,117) (5,766) (3,994)
- - - - (55)
7458 8§ _@) $§ (L1I7) $ (5,766) $ (4,049)
191 § (©021) $ (029 $ (1.51) $ (0.85
- - - - (0.09)

- - - - (0.20)
= 0.01 _= - _-
191 % (20 § (029 $ (s $ (.14
172§ (021) $ (029 $ (151) $ (085
- - - - (0.09)
. - - - (0.20)
- 0.01 = = -
in s @0 s 02 $ (13) s T
$ (4,447) $ (12,275) $ (11,770) $ (12,245)  $(9,355)
6,379 11,399 9,754 21,275 29,066
2,244 2,244 2,244 2,244 2,253
2,244 2,244 2,244 2,244 2,256
$ (4,990) $ (12,519) $ (11,778) $ (10,672)  $(4,914)
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes forward-looking statements, the realization of which may be
impacted by certain important factors discussed below under “Risk Factors -- Important Factors Related to Forward-
Looking Statements and Associated Risks.”

GENERAL

Our Fiscal 2003 results include a $7.7 million, non-operating gain related to the IRS settlement (see Note
13 —“Income Taxes” to the audited, consolidated financial statements). Additionally, results included a $470,000
non-operating gain related to the Medi-Cal settlement (see Note 16 — “Commitments and Contingencies” to the
audited, consolidated financial statements), $88,000 of revenue related to a favorable settlement of one hospital cost
report and the elimination of a $75,000 reserve for another cost report, both pertaining to the Company’s hospital
business segment that was discontinued in Fiscal 1999. As a result, CompCare reported net income of $7.5 million,
or $1.91 earnings per share ($1.72 diluted earnings per share) and an operating loss of $608,000, for the year ended
May 31, 2003 compared to the net loss of $770,000, or $0.20 loss per share (basic and diluted), and an operating
loss of $774,000, for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002. Excluding the $8.2 million of non-operating gains from
net income would have resulted in a $729,000 net loss ($0.19 loss per basic and diluted share) for the fiscal year
ended May 31, 2003.

No tax provision for federal income taxes was recorded during the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003, as the
$7.7 million non-operating gain specific to the IRS settlement is non-taxable. Additionally, management has
determined that a valuation allowance at May 31, 2003 and 2002, was necessary to fully offset any deferred tax
assets based on the likelihood of future realization.

CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED

OPERATIONS OPERATIONS

FISCAL 2003 FiscaL 2002

Operating revenues ........cc.coeerevereerecerennan $ 32,267 $ 27,625
Healthcare operating expenses................. 29,201 24,625
General/administrative expenses ............. 3,459 3,544
Other operating eXpenses.........occevererenae 215 230
32,875 28,399
Operating 108S.....c.ooeveerivcrrerenrenrenens $  (608) $ (774

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS —YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2003 COMPARED TO THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2002.

We reported net income of approximately $7.5 million and an operating loss of $608,000 for the fiscal year
ended May 31, 2003 compared to a net loss of $770,000 and an operating loss of $774,000 for the fiscal year ended
May 31, 2002. Results for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003 include a $7.7 million non-operating gain in
connection with the IRS settlement (see Note 13 — “Income Taxes” to the audited, consolidated financial statements)
and a $470,000, non-operating gain related to the Medi-cal settlement (see Note 16 — “Commitments and
Contingencies” to the audited, consolidated financial statements). For the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003, excluding
the $8.2 million non-operating gains from net income would have resulted in a $729,000 net loss ($0.19 loss per
basic and diluted share). Additionally, results include $88,000 of revenue related to a favorable settlement of one
hospital cost report and the elimination of a $75,000 reserve for another cost report, both pertaining to our hospital
business segment that was discontinued in Fiscal 1999. Operating revenues increased by 16.8%, or $4.6 million, to
approximately $32.3 million for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003 compared to $27.6 million for the fiscal year
ended May 31, 2002. This increase is primarily attributable to membership growth from existing business, one new
contract implemented during the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2002, and new Indiana business that was implemented
during January 2003. These increases were offset by the loss of business from two major customers during Fiscal
2003 (see Note 4(1 and 3) - “Major Customers/Contracts” to the audited, consolidated financial statements).

Healthcare operating expenses increased by approximately $4.6 million, or 18.6%, for the fiscal year ended
May 31, 2003 as compared to the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002. This increase is directly attributable to revenue
growth as described above. Healthcare operating expense as a percentage of operating revenue increased by 1.4%
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from 89.1% for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002 to 90.5% for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003. This increase
is primarily attributable to a change in revenue mix resulting in increased Medicaid membership during Fiscal 2003
compared to Fiscal 2002,

General and administrative expenses decreased by $85,000, or 2.4%, for the fiscal year ended May 31,
2003 as compared to the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002. This decrease is primarily attributable to net reductions in
outside professional service fees offset by staffing additions necessary to support new revenue. General and
administrative expense as a percentage of operating revenue decreased from 12.8% for the fiscal year ended May 31,
2002 to 10.7% for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003.

Other operating expenses decreased by $15,000 for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003 compared to the
fiscal year ended May 31, 2002. This decrease is attributable to a decrease in depreciation expense offset by an
increase in bad debt expense in Fiscal 2003 compared to Fiscal 2002. The increase in bad debt expense is primarily
due to a $66,000 bad debt recovery in Fiscal 2002.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2002 COMPARED TO THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2001.

We reported a net loss of $770,000 and an operating loss of $774,000 for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002
compared to the operating loss of $1.2 million for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2001. Operating revenues increased
by 51.9%, or $9.4 million, to $27.6 million for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002 compared to $18.2 million for the
fiscal year ended May 31, 2001. This increase was attributable to two major contracts implemented during Fiscal
2001 and membership growth from state sponsored children’s health insurance programs.

Healthcare operating expenses increased by approximately $9.3 million, or 60.7%, for the fiscal year ended
May 31, 2002 as compared to the fiscal year ended May 31, 2001. This increase is directly attributable to revenue
growth as described above. Healthcare operating expense as a percentage of operating revenue increased by 4.8%,
from 84.3% for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2001 to 89.1% for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002. This increase
was primarily attributable to a change in revenue mix resulting in increased Medicaid and Medicare membership
during Fiscal 2002 compared to Fiscal 2001.

General and administrative expenses decreased by approximately $0.3 million, or 7.8%, for the fiscal year
ended May 31, 2002 as compared to the fiscal year ended May 31, 2001. This decrease was attributable to our
continuing efforts to reduce general and administrative costs. General and administrative expense as a percentage of
operating revenue decreased from 21.1% for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2001 to 12.8% for the fiscal year ended
May 31, 2002.

Other operating expenses increased $43,000 for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002 compared to the fiscal
year ended May 31, 2001. This increase was primarily attributable to the $327,000 reduction in the amount of
recovery of doubtful accounts year over year, offset by a $242,000 decrease in depreciation expense, which results
from assets being fully depreciated and, also, from decreases in capital spending. Additionally, Fiscal 2002 results
do not include any amortization expense compared to $72,000 of amortization expense recorded during the fiscal
year ended May 31, 2001 (see Note 10 to the audited, consolidated financial statements — “Goodwill”).

SEASONALITY OF BUSINESS

Historically and during Fiscal 2003, we have experienced consistently low utilization during our first fiscal
quarter, which comprises the months of June, July, and August, and increased utilization during our fourth fiscal
quarter, which comprises the months of March, April and May. Such variations in utilization impact our costs of
care during these months, generally having a positive impact on our gross margins and operating profits during the
first fiscal quarter and a negative impact on our gross margins and operating profits during the fourth quarter.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

During the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003, we completed a settlement with the Internal Revenue Service and
reached an agreement with our former tax advisor with respect to the related tax advisor fees. Having concluded
these settlements, we recorded a non-operating gain of $7.7 million during the quarter ended February 28, 2003,
significantly reducing our working capital deficiency and stockholders’ deficit (see Note 13 — “Income Taxes” to the
audited, consolidated financial statements), which amount to $4.4 million and $5.0 million, respectively, as of May
31,2003. The IRS settlement required us to make a cash payment in February 2003 of approximately $2.2 million,
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which was offset in part by $525,000 collected from our former tax advisor. As a result, cash and cash equivalents
have decreased by approximately $1.8 million during the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003.

Our unpaid claims liability is estimated using an actuarial paid completion factor methodology and other
statistical analyses. These estimates are subject to the effects of trends in utilization and other factors. Any
significant increase in member utilization that falls outside of our estimations would increase healthcare operating
expenses and may impact our ability to achieve profitability and positive cash flow. Although considerable
variability is inherent in such estimates, we believe that the unpaid claims liability is adequate. However, actual
results could differ from the $4.1 million claims payable amount reported as of May 31, 2003.

During Fiscal 2003, net cash used in operations amounted to $1.7 million, which approximates the net
amount paid by the Company to complete its settlement with the Internal Revenue Service. Having concluded this
settlement, the Company recorded a non-operating gain of $7.7 million during the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003,
significantly reducing its working capital deficiency and stockholders’ deficit, which amount to $4.4 million and
$5.0 million, respectively, as of May 31, 2003. Our capital needs during Fiscal 2004 will include a portion of the
$0.4 million required to implement a new, customized management information system that will enable us to meet
HIPAA requirements, streamline our entire clinical and claims functions, and offer service improvements to our
participating providers (see “Management Information Systems” above). We are currently pursuing sources of
financing on terms that would support our future capital needs and provide available funds for working capital in
Fiscal 2004. We cannot state with any degree of certainty whether any required additional equity or debt financing
will be available to us during Fiscal 2004 and, if available, that the source of financing would be available on terms
and conditions acceptable to us. These conditions raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, which is dependent upon our ability to continue to generate sufficient cash flow to meet our
obligations on a timely basis, obtaining additional financing as may be required and, ultimately, attaining an
operating profit.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon the Company’s
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make
significant estimates and judgments to develop the amounts reflected and disclosed in the financial statements. On
an on-going basis, we evaluate the appropriateness of our estimates and we maintain a thorough process to review
the application of cur accounting policies. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other
assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these
estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe the following significant accounting policies involve our most significant judgments and estimates that
are material to our consolidated financial statements:

Accrued Claims Payable -- The accrued claims payable liability represents the estimated ultimate net amounts owed
for all behavioral healthcare services provided through the respective balance sheet dates, including estimated
amounts for claims incurred but not yet reported (“IBNR”) to the Company. The unpaid claims liability is estimated
using an actuarial paid completion factor methodology and other statistical analyses and is continually reviewed and
adjusted, if necessary, to reflect any change in the estimated liability. These estimates are subject to the effects of
trends in utilization and other factors. However, actual claims incurred could differ from the estimated claims
payable amount reported as of May 31, 2003. Although considerable variability is inherent in such estimates, we
believe that the unpaid claims liability is adequate.

Revenue Recognition -- Our managed care activities are performed under the terms of agreements with health
maintenance organizations, preferred provider organizations, and other health plans or payers to provide contracted
behavioral healthcare services to subscribing participants. Revenue under a substantial portion of these agreements
is earned monthly based on the number of qualified participants regardless of services actually provided (generally
referred to as capitation arrangements). The information regarding qualified participants is supplied by our clients
and we rely extensively on the accuracy of the client remittance and other reported information to determine the
amount of revenue to be recognized. Such agreements accounted for 87.4%, or $28.2 million, of revenue for the
fiscal year ended May 31, 2003. The balance of our revenues is earned on a fee-for-service basis and is recognized
as services are rendered.
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Goodwill -- As aresult of the adoption of SFAS 142, effective June 1, 2001, no amortization expense was recorded
during the fiscal years ended May 31, 2003 or 2002 compared to approximately $72,000 of amortization expense
recorded during the fiscal year ended May 31, 2001. SFAS 141 requires the elimination of any unamortized
deferred credits related to an excess of fair value of acquired assets over cost from a business combination for which
the acquisition date was before July 1, 2001 immediately upon adoption of SFAS 142. As of June 1, 2001, the
Company had an unamortized deferred credit of $55,000 that related to an acquisition in 1996. As a result, the

Company recognized $55,000 as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle during the quarter ended
August 31, 2001.

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill are as follows:

Fiscal Year ended May 31,

2003 2002 2001
Balance as of the beginning of the fiscal year .........ococcoovevvreeriencencrnnnens $991,000  $936,000 $1,008,000
AMOTHZAION c.ccovviiriie ettt sttt e - - (72,000)
Unamortized deferred credit written off and recognized in income ....... - 55,000 --
Balance as of the end of the fiscal year .........ccccooeveieivnerieneninccncnenee $991,000  $991,000 $ 936,000

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 142, we amortized goodwill on a straight-line basis over estimated lives up to 20
years. Had we accounted for goodwill consistent with the provisions of SFAS 142 in prior years, the Company’s net
loss would have been affected as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Fiscal Year Ended

May 31,

2003 2002 2001
Reported net inCome (J0SS) ...vvvvveerervreereerrreeenireeneereivesnesssnseserscneesens $7,458 $ (770) $(1,117)
Add back: Goodwill amMOTtiZation ..........cccooeerimvrininercriir s - -- 72
Elimination: Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ............ - (35) --
Adjusted net iNCOME (I0SS) .ooveverereereeririreie st cre st $7,458 $ (825) - $(1,045)
Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Reported net income (1058) .....cevireeririaririinercieetn e $1.91 $(0.20) $ (0.29)
Goodwill AaMOrtZAtION........c.ceceriiriiiciicre - - 0.02
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ..........coceccrvrcnenenne. - 0.01) -
Adjusted net iNCOME (l0SS) v.vevivvrverervririricereiretenr ettt $1.91 $(0.21) $ (0.27)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share: - -
Reported net inCome (JOSS) ...vevvvreeriinrereeieiereinierenie sttt $1.72 $(0.20) $ (0.29)
Goodwill amOrtiZation ..........cccvvievirienerinn e e e -- -- 0.02
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ... - (0.01) -
Adjusted net INCOME (10SS) .vrvrvvrreerearriccrrirerererseer e creansee e reeeanee $1.72 $(0.2D) ¥ (027
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding — basic ............ccveueeennn, 3,905 3,860 3,818
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding — diluted .............cc.cc..... 4343 3,860 3.818

RisSK FACTORS

IMPORTANT FACTORS RELATED TO FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains certain forward-looking statements that are based on current
expectations and involve a number of risks and uncertainties. Factors that may materially affect revenues, expenses
and operating results include, without limitation, our success in (i) expanding the managed behavioral healthcare

operations, (ii) effective management in the delivery of services, and (iii) risk and utilization in context of capitated
payouts,
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CONCENTRATION OF RISK

We currently have contracts with four health plans to provide behavioral healthcare services under
commercial, Medicaid, and CHIP plans to contracted members in Connecticut, Florida, and Texas. These combined
contracts represent approximately 56.7% and 63.6% of our operating revenue for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003
and May 31, 2002, respectively, and include contracts that terminated effective January 1, 2003, which accounted
for a combined 11.7% and 17.0% of our operating revenue for the fiscal years ended May 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively (see Note 4(1) to the audited, consolidated financial statements ~ “Major Customers/Contracts™) and
agreements that terminated effective February 28, 2003, which accounted for 4.8% and 3.6% of our operating
revenues during the fiscal years ended May 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively (see Note 4(3) to the audited,
consolidated financial statements — “Major Customers/Contracts”). One HMO, whose contract with the Company
accounted for approximately $2.8 million, or 8.5%, of our operating revenue for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003
and is scheduled to renew in January 2004, has verbally advised us that it is evaluating whether to manage its
members’ behavioral healthcare benefits “in house” (see Note 4(3) to the audited, consolidated financial statements
— “Major Customers/Contracts’”). We have not received a formal termination notice, nor has the customer advised
the Company of a date by which it will make known its decision. However, at this point in time, we believe there
exists a greater risk of non-renewal of this contract, the realization of which rests solely with our customer.
Although the loss of this customer could have a material, adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition and
future results of operations, we believe the Company will be able to reduce its internal cost of servicing this account
to minimize any effect on future results of operations. In general, the terms of each contract are generally for one-
year periods and are automatically renewable for additional one-year periods unless terminated by either party. The
loss of any one of these customers or changes in any of these State’s Medicaid reimbursement rules could have a
material, adverse effect on our working capital and future results of operations (see “Medicaid and Other State
Funded Programs” below).

HISTORY OF OPERATING LOSSES — UNCERTAINTY OF FUTURE PROFITABILITY

For each of the fiscal years ending May 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, we had operating losses of approximately
$608,000, $774,000 and $1,163,000, respectively. The report of the Company's independent auditors with respect to
their examination of the Company'’s financial statements for the years ended May 31, 2003 and 2002 contains an
explanatory paragraph relating to the preparation of the Company's financial statements on a "going concern” basis
and states that the Company’s working capital deficiency and stockholder’s deficit raise substantial doubt about its
ability to continue as a going concern. At May 31, 2003, the Company’s total current liabilities exceeded its total
current assets by approximately $4.4 million and it had an accumulated deficit of approximately $56.9 million, with
a total stockholders deficit of approximately $5.0 million. While our management has addressed the conditions
giving rise to the going concern uncertainty, there is no certainty that we will be successful in implementing any of
the plans of management to restore us to profitability, to achieve and maintain positive cash flow on an ongoing
basis, or otherwise to ensure that we will be able to continue as a going concern.

COSTS OF CARE - ESTIMATED CLAIMS INCURRED BUT NOT REPORTED

QOur costs of care include estimated amounts for claims incurred but not yet reported (“IBNR”) to
CompCare. The IBNR is estimated using an actuarial paid completion factor methodology and other statistical
analyses that we continually review and adjust, if necessary, to reflect any change in the estimated liability. These
estimates are subject to the effects of trends in utilization and other factors. Although considerable variability is
inherent in such estimates, we believe that our unpaid claims liability is adequate. However, actual results may differ
materially from the estimated amounts reported.

NEED FOR ADDITIONAL FUNDS; UNCERTAINTY OF FUTURE FUNDING

We believe that our ability to increase business is dependent on our ability to have available working
capital and, therefore, we will require additional funding. We are currently pursuing sources of financing on terms
that would support our capital needs and provide available funds for working capital in Fiscal 2004. We cannot state
with any degree of certainty whether any required additional equity or debt financing will be available to us during
Fiscal 2004 and, if available, that the source of financing would be available on terms and conditions acceptable to
us.




COMPREHENSIVE CARE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
UNCERTAINTY OF PRICING; HEALTHCARE REFORM AND RELATED MATTERS

Managed care operations are at risk for costs incurred to supply agreed upon levels of service. Failure to
anticipate or control costs could have material, adverse effects on the Company. Additionally, the business of
providing services on a full-risk capitation basis exposes CompCare to the additional risk that contracts negotiated
and entered into may ultimately be determined to be unprofitable if utilization levels require us to deliver and
provide services at capitation rates which do not account for or factor in such utilization levels.

We typically contract with small to medium sized HMO’s who may be adversely affected by the continuing
efforts of governmental and third party payers to contain or reduce the costs of healthcare through various means.
Our clients may fall under state supervision or otherwise be subject to state discipline placing them at risk of losing
membership to their competitors in which case we may be unable to contract with any succeeding HMOs. They
may also determine to manage the behavioral healthcare benefits “in house” and, as a result, discontinue contracting
with the Company. Additionally, our clients may be acquired by larger HMO’s, in which case there can be no
assurance that the acquiring company would renew our contract.

MEDICAID AND OTHER STATE FUNDED PROGRAMS

As of May 31, 2003, we managed approximately 627,000 lives in connection with behavioral and
substance abuse services covered through Medicaid in Connecticut, Florida, Michigan and Texas. The aggregate
number of Medicaid lives was reduced by approximately 166,000 effective January 1, 2003 due to the termination of
the contracts described under Note 4(1) -- “Major Contracts/Customers” to the audited, consolidated financial
statements. Any changes in Medicaid reimbursement could ultimately affect the Company through contract bidding
and cost structures with the health plans first impacted by such changes. The State of Texas has passed legislation
that will reduce the amount of funds allocated to our clients to cover behavioral healthcare services to Medicaid and
Children’s Health Insurance Program (“CHIP”) recipients in the State of Texas. Such legislation is subject to
pending bills that, if passed, could restore some of the benefits to these programs. Under the recently passed
legislation, the outpatient behavioral healthcare benefits available to adult Medicaid and CHIP recipients will be
provided by the HMOs and their subcontractors, including the Company, on a very limited basis while the inpatient
benefits for CHIP recipients may not be covered by the HMOs and their subcontractors. For the fiscal year ended
May 31, 2003, we had operating revenue of $3.7 million and $4.5 million, respectively, specific to contracts
covering Texas CHIP and Texas Medicaid recipients. These changes to Texas Medicaid and CHIP programs could
have a material, adverse impact on our operations. However, we believe certain of our clients will continue to
require the types of services we provide to mitigate their exposure to treat serious medical conditions that may result
from the lack of adequate behavioral healthcare benefits. We are closely monitoring developments in Texas, but
currently cannot predict what financial impact, if any, these changes may have on our business. Additionally, we
cannot predict whether other states in which we operate may pass legislation that would reduce our revenue through
changes in the reimbursement rates or in the number of eligible participants. In either case, we may be unable to
reduce our costs to a level that would allow us to maintain current gross margins specific to our Medicaid and
CHIPS programs.

SEASONALITY OF BUSINESS

Historically and during Fiscal 2003, we have experienced consistently low utilization during our first fiscal
quarter, which comprises the months of June, July, and August, and increased utilization during our fourth fiscal
quarter, which comprises the months of March, April and May. Such variations in utilization impact our costs of
care during these months, generally having a positive impact on our gross margins and operating profits during the
first fiscal quarter and a negative impact on our gross margins and operating profits during the fourth quarter.

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

CompCare is subject to extensive and evolving state and federal regulations relating to the nation’s mental
health system as well as changes in Medicaid and Medicare reimbursement that could have an effect on the
profitability of our contracts. These regulations range from licensure and compliance with regulations related to
insurance companies and other risk-assuming entities, to licensure and compliance with regulations related to
healthcare providers. These laws and regulations may vary considerably among states. As a result, CompCare may
be subject to the specific regulatory approach adopted by each state for regulation of managed care companies and
for providers of behavioral healthcare treatment services.
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CompCare holds licenses or certificates to perform utilization review and third party administrator (“TPA™)
services in certain states. Certain of the services provided by our managed behavioral healthcare subsidiaries may
be subject to such licensing requirements in other states. There can be no assurance that additional utilization
review or TPA licenses will not be required or, if required, that CompCare will qualify to obtain such licenses. In
many states, entities that assume risk under contract with licensed insurance companies or health plans have not
been considered by state regulators to be conducting an insurance or HMO business. As a result, we have not
sought licensure as either an insurer or HMO in any state. If the regulatory positions of these states were to change,
our business could be materially affected until such time as we are able to meet the regulatory requirements.
Currently, we cannot quantify the potential effects of additional regulation of the managed care industry, but such
costs will have an adverse effect on future operations to the extent that they are not able to be recouped in future
managed care contracts.

CompCare is subject to the requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of
1996 (“HIPAA”). The purpose of the HIPAA provisions is to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the
healthcare system through standardization of the electronic data interchange of certain administrative and financial
transactions and, also, to protect the security and privacy of protected health information. Entities subject to HIPAA
include some healthcare providers and all healthcare plans. To meet the specific requirements of HIPAA, we will
incur costs to insure the adequacy and security of our healthcare information system and communication networks.
Additionally, we will incur costs to implement a new clinical information system that will process the specific
transaction codes required by HIPAA for claims, payment, enrollment, eligibility, or to become compliant with
security and privacy rules, which may be more stringent for providers of certain behavioral healthcare services (see
“Management Information Systems” above). The expected timetable for us to be compliant is currently October
2003 for transaction code changes due to our October 2002 filing of a formal compliance plan. The Company has
met the deadline for compliance with the privacy rules, which was April 14, 2003. Additionally, we have filed our
Electronic Health Care Transactions and Code Sets Standards Model Compliance Plan with the Centers for
Medicare and Medicaid Services. While these efforts will be ongoing, we expect to meet all compliance rules and
timetables with respect to the HIPAA regulations. Failure to do so may result in penalties and have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s ability to retain its customers or to gain new business.

DEPENDENCE ON KEY PERSONNEL

We currently rely heavily on several key executives and other management, clinical and technical
personnel for our business performance and development. Recent new hires have included senior management
personnel and other essential employees that are assisting executive management with marketing efforts and
enhancements to our clinical system designs. Our future success will depend in large part upon our continued ability
to attract and retain highly skilled employees.

SHARES ELIGIBLE FOR FUTURE SALE

As of September 3, 2003, the Company has issued 1,105,724 options, with exercise prices ranging from
$0.25 to $4.00. A total of 867,083 options are exercisable and “in the money” as of September 3, 2003 and,
accordingly, could be exercised and resold by optionees.

ANTI-TAKEOVER PROVISIONS

The Company’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation provides for 60,000 authorized shares of Preferred
Stock, the rights, preferences, qualifications, limitations and restrictions of which may be fixed by our Board of
Directors without any vote or action by the stockholders that could have the effect of diluting the Common Stock or
reducing working capital that would otherwise be available to the Company. As of May 31, 2003, there are 18,740
remaining shares authorized and available to issue, and no outstanding shares of Preferred Stock. The Company’s
Restated Certificate of Incorporation also provides for a classified board of directors with directors divided into
three classes serving staggered terms. The Company’s stock option plans generally provide for the acceleration of
vesting of options granted under such plans in the event of certain transactions that result in a change of control of
the Company. Section 203 of the General Corporation Law of Delaware prohibits us from engaging in certain
business combinations with interested stockholders. These provisions may have the effect of delaying or preventing
a change in control of the Company without action by the stockholders and therefore could adversely affect the price
of our Common Stock or the possibility of sale of shares to an acquiring person.
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Assumptions relating to the foregoing involve judgments that are difficult to predict accurately and are
subject to many factors that can materially affect results. Budgeting and other management decisions are subjective
in many respects and thus susceptible to interpretations and periodic revisions based on actual experience and
business developments, the impact of which may cause us to alter our budgets which may in turn affect the
Company’s results. In light of the factors that can materially affect the forward-looking information included
herein, the inclusion of such information should not be regarded as a representation by the Company or any other
person that our objectives or plans will be achieved.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
While we currently have market risk sensitive instruments, we have no significant exposure to changing

interest rates as the interest rate on our long-term debt is fixed. Additionally, we do not use derivative financial
instruments for investment or trading purposes and our investments are generally limited to cash deposits.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Comprehensive Care Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Comprehensive Care Corporation and
subsidiaries as of May 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’
deficit and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended May 31, 2003. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overal! financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Comprehensive Care Corporation and subsidiaries as of May 31,
2003 and 2002, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended May 31, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

As discussed in Note 3, the Company’s working capital deficiency, stockholders’ deficit, and continued
losses from operations raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s plans
as to these matters are also described in Note 3. The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not include
any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

As discussed in Note 2, effective June 1, 2001, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 142 and changed its method of accounting for goodwill.

/s/ Eisner LLP

New York, New York
July 25, 2003

19



COMPREHENSIVE CARE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

May 31,
2003 2002
(Amounts in Thousands)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENES ........c..ceeeeveeere e eeeces e eae e ee e eases e seanas $ 3,590 $ 5,340
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $27 and
BB ettt et rb e r s be e b e ebe b eresareaearens 75 324
Accounts receivable — managed care reinsurance contract ................... 354 575
Other receivable ........oviiiieiiecce et -- 2,548
Other CUITEINE @SSELS .....oevvivererererieereeeeeeeeseseretesesesesensssnssessesasesesssasssnseenns _ 605 591
Total CUITENE ASSELS ...c.eeveiriiriitireceeees ettt stesae st e s ane s resre st 4,624 9,378
Property and equipment, NEL........ccccoccriiiiininener e e e e 230 291
NOte receivable ..o e e 155 159
GOOAWIIL TIEE ...oveiieiriiicier ettt r et s ba e beerbe e ae e sarnsbeons 991 991
RESIICIEA CASN ..ottt es e ereae et st e b 328 430
Other @SSELS.....vviriicieiciet st 51 _ 150
TOtAL ASSELS ...oovcvivirererciess ettt $6,379 $ 11,399

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
Current liabilities:

Accounts payatle and accrued liabilities........c.cooveeeccrnicnvn e $ 1,836 $ 2,891
Accrued claims payable........ccoviieiiiiiii e 4,103 4,635
Accrued reinsurance claims payable ......o..oocceivviiricinininene e 3,117 2,019
Unbenefitted tax refunds received.......oovimincieeveeeerrieesiecrr e -- 12,092
Income taxes payable ... 15 16
Total current Habihties......ooovivvviee it eere s 9,071 21,653

Long-term liabilities:

Long-term debt...........ccooeviieeeieriieeeeeeeee e, et 2,244 2,244
Other lIabilItIES ...ovvevvieiecee vttt sttt s ae st 54 21
Total long-term labilities ........ccccooiieereniiiinii e, 2,298 2,265
TOtal HADIIES ..evveieeriricceieie et ee e eee et e raes s eaesa s e eaneraseenees 11,369 23,918

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 16)
Stockholders’ deficit:

Preferred stock, $50.00 par value; authorized 18,740 shares; none issued -- -
Common stock, $0.01 par value; authorized 12,500,000 shares; issued
and outstanding 3,936,549 and 3,878,552 ...ccccorviiivie e 39 39
Additional paid-in-capital...........coccooiciiiinincininiicn 51,928 51,842
Deferred COMPENSALION ......eeveeriicierieieiinrertenerestesie e secernenresie e sree e seesnes (16) (D
Accumulated defiCit .....coivcviviiiiieece e e (56,941) (64,399)
Total stockholders’ defiCit........cccviiiiiiceriviriiireeecreerer e (4,990 (12,519)
Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficit..........c.cooooiiiiiiniiiic, $6,379 $11,399 )

See accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year Ended May 31,

Earnings (loss) per common share - diluted:
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in accounting

PLINCIPIE ...ttt et et e $1.72
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ... -
Net income (10SS)......c..oririmiirereiriiee et $ 172

Weighted average common shares outstanding:

BASIC c.vviviieiieiie vttt ettt ettt e aas e eebae s 3,905
DIIIEEA ..ottt e et e e ar e e s abe e s abaee s ebaaeeeaen 4,343

See accompanying notes
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2003 2002 2001
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)
Operating ReVENUES ......coovvviiiiiirieerceencene et ere s e ebssnenes $ 32,267 $27,625 $18,192
Costs and Expenses:
Healthcare operating eXpenses .........ocevveovvrenerieineerieseee e 29,201 24,625 15,326
General and administrative EXPenses .........coccoevveeeenriceerioreeeenaerenens 3,459 3,544 3,842
Provision for (recovery of) doubtful accounts..........cccoceerriciviennnne. 20 (112) (439)
Depreciation and amortization ............c.ccocovirireveinveninnneneeee e 195 342 656
ReSTUCtUring EXPENSES ..vovviiviiririie st -- -- 30)
32,875 28,399 19,355
Operating loss before items shown below............................... (608) (774) (1,163)
* Other income (expense):
Net gain on IRS settlement........ccovveoiieeiinniiinirc e 7,717 -- --
Gain on settlement of other liability.............cccocoviiiiiii e 470 -- --
Loss in connection with prepayment of note receivable -- -- (496)
Gain on sale 0f @SSELS .....cccoveveiieeeiiiie i 4 - -
Loss on disposal of aSsets.........ccevineniiiincncnccnn e (5) -- -
Reduction in accrued interest @XPense........coov.vcoverivrcrnecioreeriercrucnes -- -~ 290
Other non-operating iNCOMe, NEL......c.ccvverrierinninniieeere e 34 40 332
INTErest INCOME .. eovineiiiiirie e 47 88 163
INtErest EXPEMNSE ...cuvvereiirieiiiiie s (181) (178) (208)
Income (loss) before items shown below ... 7,478 (824) (1,082)
INCOME 1aX EXPENSE ....ovvrvriiiiieetcte et 20 1 35
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in accounting
PRINCIPIE ... e 7,458 (825) (1,1 17)
Cumulative effect of change of accounting principle ......ccocvvcvvveeevnnnen. - 55
Net ineome (L0SS) .........ccoormvimieri it e s $7,458 $ (770 $ ( 117)
Earnings (loss) per common share - basic:
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in accounting
PIINCIPIE .o ovvieeeeets et et b e s a b s b b e $ 191 $ (0.21) $ (0.29)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle .......ccccovcvvriviiinrenene. - 0.01 -
Net NCOME (I0SS)....ervverirerririiirrensirerere e sere e ssac b as s sssesens $ 191 $ (0.20) $ (0.29)

$ (0.29)

$ 029
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COMPREHENSIVE CARE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended May 31,
2003 2002 2001

(Amounts in thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net iNCOME (0SS)...veurrrrierreiereerenierere s sttt st ste s sesras s e e eneerersesnareseenes $ 7,458 $(770) $Q,117)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash (used in) provided
by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization .......c.c.ccccoecrvceciicnincnnnnien e 195 342 656
Provision for doubtful accounts..........cooeeviiieinnninneeee e 20 - -
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ...........cccoveerenricnnene - (55) -
Net gain from IRS settlement ... 7,717) -- --
Gain on settlement of other liability ........ccccoveeienienieciiininc e, 470) - --
Loss in connection with prepayment of note receivable.........ccccccrenrcnennnnn. -- -- 496
Gain on sale 0f ASSELS ....ovverireriiie e 4 -- --
Loss on disposal of 8sSets.....coiviniiiiiiniiiini s 5 -- -
Compensation expense — Stock iSSUE.........c.ocvvviircrnrerinrninicneieirnece e 20 -- -
Compensation expense — stock options and warrants issued.............c..c..... 15 -- 11
ReEStrUCUrING EXPENSES ...vecvvievirieerererirrerisenesese st eststrtes e sresieenesbeeneerensen -- -- 30)
Reduction in accrued Interest EXPense ........ocveevverrerrerceriaresreonerenencnnenns -- -- (290)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
ACCOUNLS TECEIVADIE ...ttt et 229 98 (146)
Accounts receivable — managed care reinsurance contract.........c..ceccoeeeeen. 221 208 (783)
Accounts receivable — pharmacy and laboratory costs.........cccoccenevencrniennas - -- 10,469
Other receivable ... 525 -- .-
Other current assets, restricted funds, and other non-current assets ............. 198 284 746
Unbenefitted tax refunds received........c.cooviveeiieevirriireeeeere e (2,258) - -
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities...........c.cooveocvvrveeenecvr e (687) (397) (615)
Accrued claims payable...........oooii e (532) 1,564 261
Accrued reinsurance claims payable .........ccooeccrincenieieniece 1,098 1,236 783
Accrued pharmacy and laboratory costs payable ........c.cccovceiicriincnnecnnnn -- - (10,469)
Income taxes payable ... (n (15 (13)
Other labilities ......cc.covoieiririeierie et - (8 “4n
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities............cccoccooervrrrnene. (1,685) 2,487 (88)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Net proceeds from sale of property and equipment...........c.cceecninienininnene, 3 -- --
Payment received on note for sale of property and equipment..................... 4 4 509
Additions to property and equUipment ............ccocoovii i an 43 (48)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities .............................. (70) 39 461
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from the issuance of Common Stock ........cccocvvveirriveneeieinieeee e 18 3 -~
Repayment of debt.......cocvvmiiiieiiiiiicne s 13 _@ -
Net cash provided by financing activities ..., 5 1 -
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ...........c.ccccooenceneenrninen. (1,750) 2,449 3
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ..., . 5,340 2,891 2,518
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year............ et et neas $ 3,590 $ 5,340 $ 2,891

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for

INEETESL ..ot $ 182 $ 179 $ 177
TNICOMMNIE LAXES . c.vivveveeieririereriene e b verearese st essere st ess b enesrsasstesee st ebsenensenenbesnes $ 22 $ _16 $ 37

See accompanying notes.
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COMPREHENSIVE CARE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTE 1 -- DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Comprehensive Care Corporation (the “Company” or “CompCare”) is a Delaware Corporation organized in 1969.
Unless the context otherwise requires, all references to the “Company” include Comprehensive Behavioral Care, Inc.
(“CBC”) and subsidiary corporations. The Company, primarily through its wholly owned subsidiary, CBC, provides
managed care services in the behavioral health and psychiatric fields, which is its only operating segment. The Company
manages the delivery of a continuum of psychiatric and substance abuse services to commercial, Medicare, and Medicaid
members on behalf of employers, health plans, government organizations, third-party claims administrators, and
commercial and other group purchasers of behavioral healthcare services. The managed care operations include
administrative service agreements, fee-for-service agreements, and capitation contracts. The customer base for its services
includes both corporate and governmental entities. The Company’s services are provided primarily by unrelated vendors
on a subcontract or subcapitated basis.

NOTE 2 -- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Comprehensive Care Corporation and its wholly
owned subsidiaries. Significant inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Company’s managed care activities are performed under the terms of agreements with health maintenance
organizations (“HMOs™), preferred provider organizations (“PPOs”), and other health plans or payers to provide contracted
behavioral healthcare services to subscribing participants. Revenue under a substantial portion of these agreements is
earned monthly based on the number of qualified participants regardless of services actually provided (generally referred to
as capitation arrangements). The information regarding qualified participants is supplied by the Company’s clients and the
Company relies extensively on the accuracy of the client remittance and other reported information to determine the amount
of revenue to be recognized. Such agreements accounted for 87.4%, or $28.2 million, of revenue for the fiscal year ended
May 31, 2003, 84.7%, or $23.4 million, of revenue for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002, and 79.2%, or $14.4 million, of
revenue for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2001. The balance of the Company’s revenues is earned on a fee-for-service
basis and is recognized as services are rendered.

HEALTHCARE EXPENSE RECOGNITION

The Company attempts to control its costs and risk by entering into contractual relationships with healthcare
providers including hospitals, physician groups and other managed care organizations either on a sub-capitated, a
discounted fee-for-services, or a per-case basis. The Company’s capitation contracts typically exclude risk for chronic care
patients. The cost of healthcare services is recognized in the period that the Company is obligated to provide such services.
Certain contracted healthcare providers assume the financial risk for participant care rendered by them and they are
compensated on a sub-capitated basis.

In cases where the Company retains the financial responsibility for authorizations, hospital utilization, and the cost
of other behavioral healthcare services, the Company establishes an accrual for estimated claims payable (see “Accrued
Claims Payable” below).

PREMIUM DEFICIENCIES

Estimated future healthcare costs and expenses in excess of estimated future premiums are recorded as a loss when
determinable. No such deficiencies existed at May 31, 2003 or May 31, 2002.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash in excess of daily requirements is invested in short-term investments with original maturities of three months
or less. These investments aggregated $2.4 million and $2.6 million at May 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. These
investments are included in cash equivalents in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

RESTRICTED CASH

As of May 31, 2003 and 2002, non-current restricted accounts include $0.3 million of cash held in trust in
connection with the Company’s Directors and Officers liability insurance policy. During Fiscal 2003, the Company
surrendered one license held by an inactive Michigan subsidiary and, as a result, approximately $100,000 of previously
restricted cash was released to the Company.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation of furniture and equipment is computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of 3 to 12 years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the term
of the related lease.

GOODWILL

Goodwill includes costs in excess of fair value of the net assets acquired in purchase transactions, less
amortization. :

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statements of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS™) No. 141, “Business Combinations” and No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which
establishes new standards for the treatment of goodwill and other intangible assets. SFAS 141 requires that the purchase
method of accounting be used for all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. SFAS 142 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 31, 2001 and permits early adoption for companies with a fiscal year beginning after
March 15, 2001. SFAS 142 prescribes that amortization of goodwill will cease as of the adoption date. The Company
elected to adopt SFAS 142 effective June 1, 2001 and, as a result, there has been no amortization expense recorded during
Fiscal 2003 or 2002 (see Note 10 — “Goodwill”). In accordance with SFAS 142, the Company had performed an
impairment test within six months of the adoption date and determined that no impairment of goodwill had occurred as of
such date. In addition, the Company performs an impairment test at least annually and whenever events and circumstances
occur that might affect the carrying value of goodwill. The Company performed an annual impairment test as of May 31,
2003 and 2002 and determined that no impairment of goodwill had occurred as of such dates.

EXTINGUISHMENT OF DEBT

In April 2002, the FASB issued Statement No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections.” This Statement eliminates the automatic
classification of gain or loss on extinguishment of debt as an extraordinary item and requires that such gain or loss be
evaluated for extraordinary classification under the criteria of Accounting Principles Board No. 30, “Reporting Results of
Operations.” The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 145 effective for its fiscal year ended May 31, 2003 and has
reflected gains on settlement of debt as other income instead of as extraordinary items.

ACCRUED CLAIMS PAYABLE

The accrued claims payable liability represents the estimated ultimate net amounts owed for all behavioral
healthcare services provided through the respective balance sheet dates, including estimated amounts for claims incurred
but not yet reported (“IBNR”) to the Company. The unpaid claims liability is estimated using an actuarial paid completion
factor methodology and other statistical analyses and is continually reviewed and adjusted, if necessary, to reflect any
change in the estimated liability. These estimates are subject to the effects of trends in utilization and other factors.
However, actual claims incurred could differ from the estimated claims payable amount reported as of May 31, 2003.
Although considerable variability is inherent in such estimates, management believes that the unpaid claims liability is
adequate.
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INCOME TAXES

The Company calculates deferred taxes and related income tax expense using the liability method. This method
determines deferred taxes by applying the current tax rate to net operating loss carryforwards and to the cumulative
temporary differences between the recorded carrying amounts and the corresponding tax basis of assets and liabilities. A
valuation allowance is established for deferred tax assets unless their realization is considered more likely than not. The
Company’s provision for income taxes is the sum of the change in the balance of deferred taxes between the beginning and
the end of the period and income taxes currently payable or receivable.

STOCK OPTIONS

In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statements of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure,” which amends the disclosure
requirements of SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” and provides alternative methods of transition for
a voluntary change to the fair value method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. As permitted by SFAS
148, the Company has elected to follow Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” (APB 25} and related interpretations in accounting for its employee stock options. Under APB 25, in the event
that the exercise price of the Company’s employee stock options is less than the market price of the underlying stock on the
date of grant, compensation expense is recognized. No stock-based employee compensation cost is reflected in net income,
as all options granted under the Company’s employee stock options plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of
the underlying common stock on the date of grant. The following table illustrates the effect on net income (loss) and
earnings (loss) per share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to stock-based
employee compensation.

YEAR ENDED MAY 31,
2003 2002 2001
(in thousands except for per share
information)

Net income (10ss), 85 TEPOTTEd.......cvreeemrieriiriiinrirre e renenes $7,458 $( 770) $(1,117)
Deduct:

Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined

under fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax

BFTECES ...t s 179 (15) ( 15)
Pro forma net income (loss) $7,279 $ (785 $(1,132)
Earnings (loss) per common share:

Basic — as reported.........ccocviviimnncen s $ 191 $ (0.20) $ 029

Basic — pro forma.........cccooii $ 1.36 $ (0.20) $ ©30)

Diluted — @s reported........co.vvvvveveeereevecierenere et ereesee s seeereeseneenees $ 1.72 $ (0.20) $ (0.29)

Diluted ~ pro forma.......c.ccveeeriiinriiorn et $ T8 $ (020) $ (030

The weighted average fair values of options granted were $0.72, $0.40, and $0.14 in Fiscal 2003, 2002, and 2001,
respectively. For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is amortized to expense over the
options’ vesting period.

The fair value of these options was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model
with the following assumptions:

YEAR ENDED MAY 31,
2003 2002 2001
Volatility factor of the expected market price of the
Company’s Common StocK ......c.coeeeivnivecrnnininecinnne, 95.0% 95.0% 95.0%
Expected life (in years) of the options........cccoccvevecenenenne. 5 5 5and 4
Risk-free interest rate ......c...ccccocceveererervrenecrinenereene e 4.0% 4.9% 5.8%
Dividend yield........cccoeeeiiiiiiireniriec e 0% 0% 0%
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The fair value of options granted to non-employee consultants is being amortized to expense over the vesting
period of the options.

PER SHARE DATA

In calculating basic earnings (loss) per share, net income (loss) is divided by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per share reflect the assumed exercise or conversion of all
dilutive securities, such as options, warrants, and convertible debentures. No such exercise or conversion is assumed where
the effect is antidilutive, such as when there is a net loss. The following table sets forth the computation of basic and
diluted earnings (loss) per share in accordance with Statement No. 128, Earnings Per Share (amounts in thousands, except
per share data):

Fiscal Year Ended May 31,

Numerator: 2003 2002 2001
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle..... $ 7,458 $ (825) $(1,117)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle .........cccocvceiiincvecinnan, == 35 -
Numerator for diluted earnings (loss) per share available to Common

StOCKROLAETS ....eveveereniieie ettt et $ 7,458 $(770) s, 07

Denominator:

Weighted average Shares .o.....coceeiicriorenrenerceienee et sesens 3,905 3,860 3,818
Effect of dilutive securities:
Employee Stock OPtioNS......c.coveveiiiciiiiniiiiieeceec e 437 -- --
WAITANLS ..o sttt et er e 1 -- -
Denominator for diluted earnings per share-adjusted weighted

average shares after assumed eXercises........c...ovuvveiiicviiniiccnicnnn 4,343 3,860 3,818

‘Basic earnings per share:

¥
~
f=
13
D
N

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle....... $ 191 $ (021

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ..., - 0.01 -
Net income (l0s8) ...........co.. e $ 191 $ (0.20) $ (0.29)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle....... $ 1.72 $ (021 $ (0.29)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ..., - 0.01 -
Net INCOME (JOSS) v.vvveerereriririereeeretesi et eseereerse e ets e sberese e s eseasessrssnsrsbescsnarasens $ 1.72 $ (0.20) $ (0.29)

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FASB Statement No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments” requires disclosure of fair
value information about financial instruments for which it is practical to estimate that value.

For cash and cash equivalents, notes receivable, and restricted cash, the carrying amount approximates fair value.
For long-term debt, the fair value is based on the estimated market price for the Debentures on the last day of the fiscal

year.

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Company’s financial instruments at May 31, 2003 and 2002, are as

follows:
2003 2002
CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR
AMOUNT VALUE AMOUNT VALUE

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents............ccoeovvvrcrivirncnnnnne, $3,590 $3,590 $5340 $5,340
NOte 1eCeIVADIE ...t 159 159 163 163
Restricted €ash.....c..oocveeeeiiiiiee e 328 328 430 430
Liabilities '
Long-term debt........ccocrrremeoiriirareeeeiecrn $2,244 $2,328 $2,244 $1,534
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NOTE 3 -- BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. During the quarter
ended February 28, 2003, the Company completed a settlement with the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) and reached an
agreement with its former tax advisor with respect to the related tax advisor fees (see Note 13 — “Income Taxes”). Having
concluded these settlements, the Company recorded a non-operating gain of $7.7 million during the quarter ended February
28, 2003, significantly reducing its working capital deficiency and stockholders’ deficit, which amount to $4.4 million and
$5.0 million, respectively, as of May 31, 2003. The IRS settlement required the Company to make a cash payment in
February 2003 of approximately $2.2 million, which was offset in part by $525,000 collected from its former tax advisor.
As a result, net cash used in operations during the year ended May 31, 2003 amounted to $1.7 million, which approximates
the decrease in cash and cash equivalents during such fiscal year.

The Company is currently pursuing sources of financing on terms that would support the Company’s capital needs
and provide available funds for working capital. Management cannot state with any degree of certainty whether any
required additional equity or debt financing will be available to it during Fiscal 2004 and, if available, that the source of
financing would be available on terms and conditions acceptable to the Company. Further, the Company has incurred
operating losses during each of the years ended May 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001. These conditions raise substantial doubt
about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, which is dependent upon its ability to continue to generate
sufficient cash flow to meet its obligations on a timely basis, obtaining additional financing as may be required and,
ultimately, attaining an operating profit. The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments that may result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

NOTE 4 -- MAJOR CONTRACTS/CUSTOMERS

(1) During the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003, the Company had three contracts with one HMO to provide behavioral
healthcare services to Florida members. The combined revenue from these contracts accounted for 11.7%, or $3.8
million, of the Company’s operating revenues during the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003 compared to 17.0%, or $4.7
million, for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2002 and 17.6%, or $3.2 million, for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2001.
This HMO has been our customer since November 1998. On September 24, 2002, the Company received a written,
90-day termination notice, dated September 20, 2002, from this client. As such, these contracts covering Florida
members terminated effective January 1, 2003. Additionally, the Company has one major contract with an affiliate of
this HMO (see Item 2 below).

(2) The Company has one contract to provide behavioral healthcare services to Connecticut members under contract with
one HMO. For the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003, this contract represented approximately 9.0%, or $2.9 million, of
the Company’s operating revenue compared to 12.7%, or $3.5 million and 3.2%, or $.6 million for the fiscal years
ended May 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Additionally, this contract provides that the Company, through its
contract with this HMO, receives additional funds directly from a state reinsurance program. During the fiscal years
ended May 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company filed reinsurance claims totaling approximately $3.0 million and $3.8
million, respectively. Such claims represent cost reimbursements and, as such, are not included in the reported
operating revenues and are accounted for as reductions of healthcare operating expenses. As of May 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively, the Company has reported $0.4 million and $0.6 million as accounts receivable-managed care
reinsurance contracts, with $3.1 million and $2.0 million reported as accrued reinsurance claims payable, in the
accompanying balance sheet. In the event that the Company does not collect the amounts receivable related to
reinsurance amounts, the Company could remain liable for the costs of the specific services provided to members that
qualify for such reimbursements. The difference between the reinsurance receivable amount and the reinsurance
payable amount is related to timing differences between the authorization date, the date the money is received by the
Company, and the date the money is paid to the provider. In certain cases, providers have submitted claims for
authorized services having incorrect service codes or otherwise incorrect information that has caused payment to be
denied by the Company. In such cases, there are contractual and statutory provisions that allow the provider to appeal
a denied claim. If no appeal is received by the Company within the prescribed amount of time, the Company may be
required to remit the reinsurance funds back to the appropriate party. For non-reinsurance claims incurred but not
reported under this contract, the Company estimates its claims payable using a similar method as that used for other
existing contracts. This HMO has been a customer since March 2001. The original contract term ended December 31,
2002 and, in accordance with its terms, was automatically renewed for a one-year period ending December 31, 2003,

(3) During the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003, the Company had one contract with one HMO, covering Medicaid,

Medicare, and commercial business, to provide behavioral healthcare services to Florida members. This agreement
represented approximately 15.6%, or $5.0 million, 21.4%, or $5.9 million, and 19.5%, or $3.5 million, of the

28




COMPREHENSIVE CARE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Company’s operating revenue for the fiscal years ended May 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. This HMO has
been a customer since July 2000. On December 24, 2002, the Company entered into a contract with another HMO that
acquired the existing client’s Medicaid business. As a result, the Company continues service to the Medicaid members
through its new contract with the acquiring HMO that was effective January 1, 2003. Medicaid business from the new
HMO client accounted for 8.5%, or $2.8 million, of the Company’s operating revenues during the fiscal year ended
May 31, 2003. On December 31, 2002, the Company received a formal termination, effective February 28, 2003, from
the existing HMO client with respect to the Medicare and commercial business. In addition, the acquiring HMO, whose
contract with the Company is scheduled to renew in January 2004, has verbally advised the Company that it is
evaluating whether to manage its members’ behavioral healthcare benefits “in house.”

(4) The Company has contracts with one HMO to provide behavioral healthcare services to contracted commercial,
Medicaid, and Children’s Health Insurance Program members in Texas. This business accounted for approximately
7.5%, or $2.4 million, 7.3%, or $2.0 million, and 3.7%, or $0.7 million, of the Company’s operating revenues during
the fiscal years ended May 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. This HMO has been a customer of the Company
since November 1998. The original contract term was for one year and the contract provides for automatic one-year
renewal terms. During Fiscal 2003, this HMO customer added Medicaid members that had been covered by another of
the Company’s HMO customers that had been placed under conservatorship by the State of Texas. The combined
contracts of both HMO customers, including the business transferred to the Company’s current Texas client during
Fiscal 2003, represented approximately 11.9%, or $3.9 million, 12.2%, or $3.4 million, and 9.1%, or $1.7 million, of
the Company’s operating revenues during the fiscal years ended May 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Although the loss of the customer listed under (1) above and the commercial and Medicare business under (3) above could
have a material, adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition and future results of operations, the Company believes
that it has reduced its internal cost of servicing these accounts to minimize any effect on future results of operations.

In general, the Company’s contracts with its customers are typically for initial one-year terms, with automatic annual
extensions. Such contracts generally provide for cancellation by either party with 60 to 90 days written notice.

NOTE 5 -- ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable consists of the following: May 31,
2003 2002
(Amounts in thousands})
Managed care capitation CONIACES........ccovvrrrrierererierrresreeeeseereeee s nareresesanens $ 102 $ 281
Other trade ..o et s - _ 51
TOLAL vttt st s s e a et na bbb bbb e sen s $ 102 $ 332

The following table summarizes changes in the Company’s allowance for doubtful accounts for the years ended May 31,
2003, 2002 and 2001:

BALANCE ADDITIONS WRITE-OFF
BEGINNING CHARGED RECOVERIES OF BALANCE
OF YEAR TO EXPENSE * ACCOUNTS END OF YEAR
(Amounts in thousands)
Year ended May 31,2003............... $ 8 $§ 43 $ - $ (24) $ 27
Year ended May 31, 2002............... $ 11 $ 3) $ - $ - $ 8
Year ended May 31, 2001............... $ 13 $ 9 5 - $ (an $ 11

*Excludes $24,000 in 2003, $109,000 in 2002, and $448,000 in 2001 of recoveries from accounts previously written off.

Recoveries are reflected on the Company’s statement of operations as a reduction to the provision for doubtful
accounts.

NOTE 6 -- OTHER RECEIVABLE

Other receivable at May 31, 2002 represented $2.5 million advanced to the Company’s former tax advisor to
prepare a federal income tax refund claim that is more fully described in Note 13 -- “Income Taxes.” During the quarter
ended February 28, 2003, the Company completed a settlement with the IRS and reached an agreement with its former tax
advisor requiring the tax advisor to repay $525,000 to the Company, which was received in February 2003. As a result of
the resolution to the IRS matter, the Company extinguished the tax liability and recorded a non-operating gain of
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approximately $7.7 million net of related expenses, including approximately $2.0 million of unrecovered fees paid to its
former tax advisor.

NOTE 7 — OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Other current assets consist of the following: MaAY 31,
2003 2002
(Amounts in thousands)
Accounts receivable — Other ..o e $ 138 $ 191
Prepaid INSUFANCE.........c.eouiiiiiieectrrtreteerc e ettt et tass et st nens 314 295
Other prepaid fees and eXpenses........c.c.occvciiiiriencnnicr s _ 153 105
Total Other CUITENt ASSELS........evurveieeiieei et $ _605 $ 591

NOTE 8 -- PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consists of the following:

MaAy 31,
2003 2002
(Amounts in thousands)

Furniture and eqUiPMENt..........ccoiiimerieceirireeri et $ 3,480 $3,399
Leasehold iMProVEMENLS..........iiieerreemerinieicrinesesereeisnstresesesssesessesseseaesnesssssesens 49 49
Capitalized 1€aSES ..........vcceuiieiiieiiii e e 54 32
3,583 3,480

Less accumulated depreciation.............o.coceeeeiiiiieievreeeiericee e e (3,353) (3,189
Net property and qUIPIIENt .........ccoveeeerereerrerisienetreee s ses s sasesssssssssasebesnsnsasesas $ 230 §_291

NOTE 9 -- NOTE RECEIVABLE

Note receivable consists of the following:
May 31,
2003 2002
(Amounts in Thousands)
8% promissory note, payable in monthly installments of approximately
$1,400, with a $146,000 principal payment due at maturity on

APl 1, 2006 ..ot $159 $163
Less current MatUrities.. oo G _@
S35 ST

On August 31, 2000, the Company entered into a prepayment agreement and note modification with Jefferson
Hills Corporation (“JHC”) in connection with the secured promissory note, which originated out of the sale in Fiscal 1999
of the Company’s Aurora, Colorado facility to JHC. The terms of the prepayment agreement required JHC to immediately
remit $500,000 to the Company as a prepayment on the note. Additionally, the note was modified to reflect a remaining
balance due totaling $170,000 and to require JHC to make monthly principal and interest payments until April 2006. One
final principal payment in the amount of approximately $146,000 will be due from JHC in April 2006. As an inducement to
JHC to make such prepayment, the Company credited JHC with an aggregate of approximately $996,000. As a result, the
Company recorded a non-operating loss during the fiscal year ended May 31, 20010f approximately $496,000 in
connection with this transaction.

NOTE 10 -- GOODWILL

As a result of the adoption of SFAS 142, effective June 1, 2001, no amortization expense was recorded during the
fiscal years ended May 31, 2003 or 2002 compared to approximately $72,000 of amortization expense recorded during the
fiscal year ended May 31, 2001. SFAS 141 requires the elimination of any unamortized deferred credits related to an
excess of fair value of acquired assets over cost from a business combination for which the acquisition date was before July
1, 2001 immediately upon adoption of SFAS 142. As of June 1, 2001, the Company had an unamortized deferred credit of
$55,000 that related to an acquisition in 1996. As a result, the Company recognized $55,000 as the cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle during the quarter ended August 31, 2001.
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Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill are as follows:
Fiscal Year ended May 31,

2003 2002 2001
Balance as of the beginning of the fiscal year .......c.coooeevnccnecicnnncns $991,000  $936,000 $1,008,000
AMOTHZALION ....ocveiiiieeiiiitie st sreerceneenesnssareeee -- -- (72,000)
Unamortized deferred credit written off and recognized in income....... -- 55,000 -~
Balance as of the end of the fiscal year .........cccocvevvvievcncvceee e $991,000  $991,000 $ 936,000

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 142, the Company amortized goodwill on a straight-line basis over estimated lives
up to 20 years. Had the Company accounted for goodwill consistent with the provisions of SFAS 142 in prior years, the
Company’s net loss would have been affected as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Fiscal Year Ended
May 31,
2003 2002 2001
Reported net inCome (10SS) ...coveeieeiirrnirireeiee et $7,458 $ (770) $(1,117)
Add back: Goodwill amortization ............c.cccoevrvincrennncrcnciene - -- 72
Elimination: Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ............ - (55) --
Adjusted net iNCOME (10SS8) ...vvvverirerrreereierierereeeiereeeresess s eseseisens $7,458 5 (825) $(1,045)
Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Reported net income (10S5) .......ccocvevimieeininnriccrreiereen e es $191 $(0.20) $ (0.29)
GoodWill AMOITIZALION .....o.vrivieiireir e eae s -- -- 0.02
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle .........coocovivciennnnnn - (0.01) -
Adjusted net income (108S) .....coeuecerieninnccninini e $191 $0.2D) $ (0.27)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share: T - -
Reported net income (10SS) ....oeeeeircrecernrnicrenecereerenseseesseensesessennens $1.72 $(0.20) $ (0.29)
GOOAWill AMOTHZAtION ......vovevveeecve st sas e -- - 0.02
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ...........ccocovininnn. - 0.01 -
Adjusted net inCome (l0SS) .....c.evevecreriercurerenrerenrnerersrereresrreecsressisissieins $1.72 $0.21) $ (0.27)
Weighted Average Common Shares Qutstanding — basic ... 3,905 3,860 3,818
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding — diluted ....................... 4343 3,860 3,818
NOTE 11 -- ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consist of the following:
May 31,
2003 2002
(Amounts in Thousands)
ACCOUNES PAYADIE......cveviiiriie e $ 379 $ 316
Accrued salaries and Wages........covvvvrvirerein i e 151 170
ACCrUEd VACALION ..ecvvereeiceiee et s 130 134
Accrued legal and audit..........coooviinninin 149 180
Payable to third-party intermediaries.............ccooceiiiiiinnniiinne s -- 1,025
Other accrued Labilities.......ocoviiviiiierieiieetii st esateesreeesrrreaeens 1,026 1,038
Deferred COMPENSAION........cooereiieinrieirie e e 1 28
$1,836  $2,891

At May 31; 2002, the amounts payable to third-party intermediaries included a $950,000 accrual related to the Medi-
Cal matter that was settled during Fiscal 2003 (see Note 16 under “Other Commitments and Contingencies,” Item 4).
Additionally, the May 31, 2002 amount included a $75,000 cost report reserve pertaining to the Company’s hospital
business segment that was discontinued in Fiscal 1999. Such reserve was reversed into other non-operating income in
Fiscal 2003 as management does not anticipate any further amounts being owed to hospital intermediaries in
connection with the one remaining cost report.
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NOTE 12 -- LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt consists of the following:
May 31,
2003 2002
(Amounts in Thousands)

7 %% convertible subordinated debentures due April, 2010, interest
payable semi-annually in April and October*.........c..cccoveveverinnennnn. $2,244 $2,244

*The debentures are convertible into approximately 9,000 shares of Common Stock at a conversion price of $248.12 per share.

NOTE 13 -- INCOME TAXES
Provision for income taxes consists of the following:

YEAR ENDED MAY 31,
2003 2002 2001
(Amounts in thousands)
Current:
FEAEIAl.....ocviiiiicrecee ettt ettt sttt b et s ete s en e eens $ -- $ - § -
SEAE .ocvtree e s 20 1 35
$20 1 $ 35

Reconciliation between the provision for income tax and the amount computed by applying the statutory Federal
income tax rate (34%) to income (loss) before income tax is as follows:

YEAR ENDED MAY 31,
2003 2002 2001
(Amounts in thousands)
Income tax provision (benefit) at the statutory tax rate ..........ccoeeeveerecirenreennn $2,543 $ (280) $(317)
State income tax provision (benefit), net of federal tax effect.........ccecveveuennn. 296 (33) (€)))]
Non-taxable gain on IRS settlement .........occocvreereereeieniiniicnnneneiieceeenies (3,733) -- --
Non-deductible JtEMS......cccceeivireeire e e e e 54 58 111
Benefit of net operating loss carryforward not recognized...........ccoecvveverenee. 840 255 243
Other, NEL ..ot 20 1 35
$ 20 $ 1 $ 35

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

MAY 31,
2003 2002
(Amounts in thousands)
Deferred Tax Assets:

Net operating 10ss carryforwards........c.cooovevninrninereeneeennenneeiesesenens $ 730 $ 15,762
Alternative minimum tax Credits .......cc.coceomverrivecrnie oo -- 667
Payable to Third Party Intermediaries..........cooevevrinrvevcnnnncinnnenenens -- 361
Employee benefits and options.........cccoveevereiivnninnen e 79 88
Other, NEL......oiiii s 186 283
Total Deferred Tax ASSELS....vverveiiiirreieiicrreeecesireeeesineesesinreeressnees 995 17,161
Valuation AlIOWENCE.........ccooieiieriireieeeeeete et rae e e e sn s e (995) (16,630)
Net Deferred Tax ASSets.......coviveiiieinininnii s - 531
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Other receivables...........ocoviiiiiici s ) (331
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities..........c.ccoeomrcnevcnniincnecinenne (-2 (531)
Net Deferred TaX ASSELS.....c.ovueererreorirmrmcrrere s ceeeserensenseseesesssesesessesemssesesees $ _ 0 $ _0

The Company had filed an “Offer in Compromise” (“Offer”) with the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) to settle a
tax dispute that began in August 1998 when the IRS notified the Company that it was disallowing $12.4 million of tax
refunds previously received by the Company specific to its Fiscal 1985 and 1986 income tax returns as amended. Of such
amount, approximately $12.1 million had been recorded as a liability, “unbenefitted tax refunds received,” pending
resolution of the appropriateness of the net operating loss carryback, which gave rise to the refunds. In January 2003, the
IRS accepted the Company’s Offer, which gave the Company the option of paying approximately $2.6 million over two
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years or paying approximately $2.2 million within 90 days of the letter of acceptance in addition to a $50,000 down
payment made by the Company at the time its Offer was submitted to IRS. In February 2003, the Company concluded the
IRS settlement by making a cash payment of approximately $2.2 million to the IRS to fully settle the previously accrued
tax liability of $12.1 million. Coincident with the IRS settlement, the Company reached an agreement with its former tax
advisor requiring the tax advisor to refund $525,000 of the original $2.5 million of fees previously paid by the Company.
The Company received the $525,000 refund in February 2003.

As a result of the resolution of this matter, the Company extinguished the $12.1 million liability and recorded a
non-operating gain in the quarter ended February 28, 2003 of approximately $7.7 million net of related expenses, including
$2.0 million representing the unrecovered portion of the $2.5 million of fees previously paid to its tax advisor. The gain
represented earnings per share of $1.97 (diluted earnings per share of $1.77). No taxable income resuited from the
settlement of the liability.

Additionally, the IRS settlement requires that the Federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $42.0
million resulting from losses incurred in fiscal years ended May 31, 1995 through May 31, 2001, and a minimum tax credit
carryover of approximately $0.7 million, are no longer available to the Company. As a result, at May 31, 2003, the
Company’s Federal net operating loss carryforwards total approximately $1.9 million resulting from losses incurred in the
fiscal years ended May 31, 2002 and May 31, 2003, which expire in 2022 and 2023.

The Company may be unable to utilize some or all of its allowable tax deductions or losses, which depends upon
factors including the availability of sufficient taxable income from which to deduct such losses during limited carryover
periods. Further, the Company’s ability to use any net operating losses may be subject to limitation in the event that the
Company issues or agrees to issue substantial amounts of additional equity. The Company monitors the potential for
“change of ownership” and believes that its financing plans as contemplated will not cause a “change of ownership”,
however, no assurances can be made that future events will not act to limit the Company’s tax benefits.

After consideration of all the evidence, both positive and negative, management has determined that a valuation
allowance at May 31, 2003 and 2002, was necessary to fully offset the deferred tax assets based on the likelihood of future
realization.

NOTE 14 -- EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company offers a 401(k) Plan (the “Plan”), which is a defined contribution plan qualified under Section
401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, for the benefit of its eligible employees. All full-time and part-time employees who
have attained the age of 21 and have completed one thousand hours of service are eligible to participate in the Plan. During
Fiscal 2003, the Plan was modified to comply with recent Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) guidelines. Each participant
may contribute from 2% to 50% of his or her compensation to the Plan subject to limitations on the highly compensated
employees to ensure the Plan is non-discriminatory. Company contributions are discretionary and are determined by the
Company’s management. The Company’s employer matching contributions were approximately $9,000, $9,000, and
$10,000 to the Plan in Fiscal 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.

NOTE 15 -- PREFERRED STOCK, COMMON STOCK, AND STOCK OPTION PLANS
Preferred Stock

As of May 31, 2003, there are 18,740 remaining shares authorized and available to issue, and no outstanding
shares of Preferred Stock. The Company is authorized to issue shares of Preferred Stock, $50.00 par value, in one or more
series, each series to have such designation and number of shares as the Board of Directors may fix prior to the issuance of
any shares of such series. Each series may have such preferences and relative participation, optional or special rights with
such qualifications, limitations or restrictions stated in the resolution or resolutions providing for the issuance of such series
as may be adopted from time to time by the Board of Directors prior to the issuance of any such series.
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Common Stock

Authorized shares of common stock reserved for possible issuance for convertible debentures and stock options
are as follows at May 31, 2003:

Convertible AEBENLUIES ..........cccovovviiieeriieiiieiectere et s be e e etne s 9,044

Outstanding StOCK OPHONS .....oviivercririiiieee et ssesreans 1,109,224

Possible future issuance under stock option plans.........ccccvvveeiieiniinnnenns 444,235

TOtAL ...ttt ettt st a et er e b e e et e s annaos 1,562,503
Stock Option Plans

The Company currently has two active incentive plans, the 1995 Incentive Plan and the 2002 Incentive Plan
(“Plans”), that provide for the granting of stock options, stock appreciation rights, limited stock appreciation rights, and
restricted stock grants to eligible employees and consultants to the Company. Grants issued under the Plans may qualify as
Incentive Stock Options (“ISOs”) under Section 422A of the Internal Revenue Code. Options for ISOs may be granted for
terms of up to ten years and are generally exercisable in cumulative increments of 50% each six months. Options for Non-
statutory Stock Options (“NSOs”) may be granted for terms of up to 13 years. The exercise price for ISOs must equal or
exceed the fair market value of the shares on the date of grant, and 65% in the case of other options. The Plans also provide
for the full vesting of all outstanding options under certain change of control events. The maximum number of shares
authorized for issuance is 500,000 under the 2002 Incentive Plan and 1,000,000 under the 1995 Incentive Plan. As of May
31, 2003, there were 315,500 options available for grant and there were 184,500 options outstanding, of which 49,750
options were exercisable, under the 2002 Incentive Plan. Additionally, as of May 31, 2003, there were 400 options
available for grant and there were 867,225 options outstanding, of which 864,225 options were exercisable, under the 1995
Incentive Plan.

The Company also has a non-qualified stock option plan for its outside directors (the “Directors’ Plan™). Each non-
qualified stock option is exercisable at a price equal to the Common Stock’s fair market value as of the date of grant. Initial
grants vest annually in 25% increments beginning on the first anniversary of the date of grant, provided the individual is
still a director on those dates. Annual grants will become 100% vested as of the first annual meeting of the Company’s
stockholders following the date of grant, provided the individual is still a director as of that date. Such annual grants
include options granted to non-employee directors for service on the various committees of the Company’s Board of
Directors. An optionee who ceases to be a director shall forfeit that portion of the option attributable to such vesting dates
on or after the date he or she ceases to be a director. The maximum number of shares authorized for issuance under the
Directors’ Plan is 250,000. As of May 31, 2003, there were 128,335 options available for grant and there were 57,499
options outstanding, of which 10,833 options were exercisable, under the Directors’ Plan.

A summary of the Company’s stock option activity and related information for the years ended May 31 is as follows:

Weighted
Average Exercise
Shares Price

Outstanding as of May 31, 2000 .........ccorvreeneennnernieieee e serreeneen 884,675 $1.19
GIranNEd. .. vevieeeiiirreiree it rererer e e rerireeeeessserrearasesreraasesesrensesernratesssnaneesserenne 181,000 0.29
FOFTRILEA ..ottt ettt ettt vesesesre e ne e (177,150) 2.05
Qutstanding as of May 31, 2001 ....coocooeiiiiiineieceivere et 888,525 $0.84
1€ 1 221 11 (=T o WO RO ST U P OREE PPN 38,000 0.45
EXETCISEA .. evevinrierieeereceieierere ettt ettt e (11,250) 0.27
FOPTEItEA .vvviveevcricie ettt ettt et sttt ettt ere b eaesaensebeas (12,100) 0.66
Outstanding as of May 31, 2002 ......cccuriereiernrnieniienerearinieeeresetseeienens 903,175 $0.83
L6 =191 =10 SRS S PO USROS 247,999 1.03
EXEICISEA ... ieceiiiieiiieer ettt st e e s b et sre bbb sre st s (38,000) 0.48
) 2003 2T ¢~ O PSSP PP (3,950} 2.40
QOutstanding as 6f May 31, 2003 .....cccovriievrrrrseeeeee e eceesnes e 1,109,224 $0.88
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A summary of options outstanding and exercisable as of May 31, 2003 follows:

Weighted- Weighted-
Weighted- Average Average
Exercise Average Remaining Exercise Price of
Options Price Exercise Contractual Options Exercisable
Outstanding Range Price Life . Exercisable Options
334,500 $0.25-50.39 $ 027 7.13 334,500 $ 027
546,333 $0.50-$0.61 $ 0.55 7.10 478,750 $ 055
127,666 $100-%195 $ 151 9.58 10,833 $ 150
100,725 $3.5625- $ 4.00 $ 3.93 5.53 100,725 $ 393
1,109,224 $ 0.88 7.25 924,808 $ 0.83

NOTE 16 -- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Lease Commitments

The Company leases certain facilities and equipment. The facility leases contain escalation clauses based on the

Consumer Price Index and provisions for payment of real estate taxes, insurance, and maintenance and repair expenses.
Total rental expense for all operating leases was $0.6 million, $0.6 million, and $0.7 million for fiscal years 2003, 2002,
and 2001, respectively.

Future minimum payments, by year and in the aggregate, under non-cancelable operating leases with initial or

remaining terms of one year or more, consist of the following at May 31, 2003:

Fiscal Year Operating Leases
(Amounts in thousands)

2004 ...ttt e bt esbenns $ 514

2005 . ettt ra s bbb nrean 354

2006 ..o eceeaiiiaiee e et et s e sa e e et st s s et assate st e e e s e st At reratoreesaatentones 346

2007 ettt et et et et neaaesn et et ee e e eaeeree s 45

Total minimum lease Payments........c.ooecvcimveeiirevrerenerireernrese e seenne $1,259

Other Commitments and Contingencies

(M

@

3)

S

Contracts with two existing clients require the Company to maintain performance bonds throughout the contract terms.
At May 31, 2003, the Company maintained performance bonds of $1,200,000 and $600,000 in compliance with these
requirements.

The Company would remain liable to perform the services covered under subcapitation agreements if the parties with
which the Company subcapitates were unable to fulfill their responsibilities under such agreements.

The Company is subject to the requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996
(“HIPAA”). The purpose of the HIPAA provisions is to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the healthcare
system through standardization of the electronic data interchange of certain administrative and financial transactions
and, also, to protect the security and privacy of protected health information. Entities subject to HIPAA include some
healthcare providers and all healthcare plans. To meet the specific requirements of HIPAA, the Company recently
determined it would need to make a significant investment in its current information system or in a new information
system that would better meet the future needs of the Company. As a result, the Company has entered into a Letter of
Intent with Qualifacts Systems, Inc. (“Qualifacts) to design a new, customized management information system that
will enable the Company to meet HIPAA requirements. The Company expects to incur approximately $0.4 million of
costs to customize the Qualifacts system and activate the licenses needed for Qualifacts and other, related third-party
software.

On February 19, 1999, the California Superior Court denied the Company’s Petition for Writ of Mandate of an adverse

administrative appeal decision regarding application of the Maximum Inpatient Reimbursement Limitation to Medi-Cal
reimbursement paid to Brea Neuropsychiatric Hospital for its fiscal periods 1983 through 1986. The Company owned
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this facility until its disposal in fiscal year 1991. The subject matter of the Superior Court action involved the refusal
of the administrative law judge to order further reductions in the liability for costs associated with treating high cost,
long stay Medi-Cal patients, which are commonly referred to as “outliers.”

In July 2002, the Company entered into a Repayment Agreement with the Department to resolve this liability, recorded
at $950,000 at May 31, 2002, at a substantially reduced amount. The terms of the Repayment Agreement required the
Company to either 1) pay one lump sum of $450,000 to the Department on or before September 1, 2002 or 2)
beginning September 1, 2002, the Company would be required to make three monthly installment payments of
$160,000 each, with the last payment being due on or before November 1, 2002, for a total of $480,000 as full and
complete satisfaction of the outstanding liability. As of November 30, 2002, after making three installment payments
to the Department of $160,000 each, the Company had fully satisfied its obligations under the terms of the settlement
agreement. As a result, the Company recorded a non-operating gain of $470,000 on settlement of the liability during
the quarter ended November 30, 2002.

From time te time, the Company and its subsidiaries are also parties and their property is subject to ordinary,
routine litigation incidental to their business, in which case claims may exceed insurance policy limits and the Company or
any one of its subsidiaries may have exposure to a liability that is not covered by insurance. Management is not aware of
any such lawsuits that could have a material adverse impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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NOTE 17 -- QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

FISCAL 2003 Quarter Ended Fiscal Year
8/31/02 11/30/02 2/28/03 5/31/03 Total
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)
OPpErating reveNUES...............cocevvueveevriierinresneerenesreenssesnaesonns $ 8,307 $ 8,631 $ 8,061 $ 7,268 $32,267
Gross Profit........occcooveieiieiiiee et s 954 871 834 407 3,066
General and administrative eXpenses............cccovceververvcneenns 888 952 771 848 3,459
Provision for (recovery of) doubtful accounts.................... ) ®) 19 15 20
Depreciation and amortization.............c..occcece i 68 63 37 27 195
Net gain on IRS settlement .........ccoevererveveivicc e, - -- (7,717) -- 7,717
Gain on settlement of other liability..........ccocorceevrevrinnicniinans - T (470) -- -- 470)
Other EXPENSe ..ot 39 _25 18 _39 121
Net income (I0SS) ......c.overiviriiieriiree et § (33 $ 307 @ $7706 wme $ (522) @ $ 7458
Earnings (loss) per share - basic ...............ccccoovnniniccene, $(.01) § 008 $ 197 $ (0.13) $ 191
Earnings (loss) per share - diluted .............c.cccccovvrcrcrnnnnee. $ (0.01 $ 007 $ 171 $ (0.13) $ L72
Weighted Average Common Shares Qutstanding - basic ...... 3,879 3,898 3,908 3,929 3,905
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding - diluted ... 3,879 4,254 4,509 3,929 4,343

(a) Includes a $470,000 gain on settlement of the Medi-Cal liability (see Note 16 — “Commitments and Contingencies”).

(b) Includes the $7.7 million gain in setttement of the IRS matter (see Note 13 - “Income Taxes”).

(c) Includes $88,000 of operating revenue related to a favorable cost report settlement that was completed during the fiscal year ended May 31,
2003 pertaining to the Company’s hospital business segment that was discontinued in Fiscal 1999.

(d) Includes $75,000 of operating revenue related to the elimination of the Company’s reserve for cost report settiements (see (c) above).

FISCAL 2002 Quarter Ended Fiscal Year
8/31/01 11/30/01 2/28/02 5/31/02 Total
{Amounts in thousands, except per share data)

OPErating reVENMUES .......c.ocovovveeriererercierensereserenesesereecosones $6,126 $ 6,470 $7,110 $ 7,919 $27,625
Gross profit.........cocooiiiiiiinine 916 946 1,017 _121 3,000
General and administrative expenses..........c.cooevvieiiininn, 826 873 874 971 3,544
Recovery of doubtful accounts ...........ccccvvvvveveereinniininnen, (14) (7D 3) (24) (112)
Depreciation and amortization...........cccccvevvceriienreininnineenn. 101 87 80 74 342
Other EXPENSE .......ccovevvieieiiiiiierercetee s _4 _24 _20 _3 _s1
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle ... ) 33 46 (503) (825)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ........... _55 - - - 55
Net inCome (I0SS) ....oo.veevnivreriieirirniieirireireeee e $ 54 @ $_33 @ $ _46 $ (903) $ (770

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in

accounting prinCiple........covevciecnnneniinn e 5 - $ 0.01 $ 0.01 $ (0.23) $ (021
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle............. 0.01 -- - - 0.01
Net i1COME (10S5) ...ovvvvrvermrmrmiirerierierersissees e $ 0.01 $ 001 $ 001 $ (0.23) $ (020
Weighted Average Common Shares Qutstanding - basic ...... 3,834 3,867 3,867 3,871 3,860
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding - diluted ... 3,989 3,988 4,187 3,871 3,860

(a) Includes a $55,000 cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (see Note 10 — “Goodwill”).
(b) Includes a $66,000 bad debt recovery specific to one contract that terminated in 1999
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS

None.
PART III

ITEMS 10. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The executive officers and directors of the Company are as follows:

NAME AGE POSITION
Mary Jane Johnson 53 President™®, Chief Executive Officer'”®, and Director ("®
Robert J. Landis 44 Chairman of the Board of Directors™®,

Chief Financial Officer "® and Treasurer (V@

Thomas Clay ‘ 55 Chief Development Officer®
Paul R. McCarthy 46 Chief Operating Officer®
Cathy J. Welch 43 Secretary™@, Vice President of Finance/Controlter"®
Eugene L. Froelich 61 Director®™
Howard A. Savin 57 Director®

U Comprehensive Care Corporation.” Comprehensive Behavioral Care, Inc, (Principal subsidiary of the Company).
®YMr. Froelich and Dr. Savin are each independent directors, and Mr. Froelich is the Audit Committee Financial Expert as that term is defined under
General Rules and Regulations under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

MARY JANE JOHNSON, RN, MBA, age 53. Ms. Johnson has served as President and Chief Executive Officer
since January 2000. In April 1999, Ms. Johnson was elected a Class I director with her current term expiring at the 2003
Annual Meeting. Since joining the Company in August 1996, Ms. Johnson has also served as Chief Operating Officer of
Comprehensive Care Corporation, an appointment that was effective July 1999, and as Chief Executive Officer for the
Company’s principal subsidiary, Comprehensive Behavioral Care, Inc., since August 1998. Ms. Johnson served as
Executive Director for Merit Behavioral Care from 1993 to 1996. Ms. Johnson, a Registered Professional Nurse, has a
Bachelors Degree in Nursing from the State University of New York and a Masters Degree in Business Administration
from Adelphi University.

ROBERT J. LANDIS, CPA, MBA, age 44. Mr. Landis has served as Chairman of the Board of Directors since
January 2000 and as Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer since July 1998. In April 1999, Mr. Landis was elected a Class
III director with his current term expiring at the 2004 Annual Meeting. Mr. Landis served as Treasurer of Maxicare Health
Plans, Inc., a health maintenance organization, from November 1988 to July 1998. Mr. Landis also serves on the Board of
Directors and on the audit committee of Global Axcess Corporation, a company that owns and operates automatic teller
machines, whose common stock is publicly traded on the Over The Counter Bulletin Board. Mr. Landis, a Certified Public
Accountant, received a Bachelors Degree in Business Administration from the University of Southern California and a
Masters Degree in Business Administration from California State University at Northridge.

THOMAS CLAY, MSW, age 55. Mr. Clay has been employed by CompCare since December 1999 and currently
serves as the Chief Development Officer for Comprehensive Behavioral Care, Inc. (“CBC”) having served as President,
Public Sector Services since June 2002. Mr. Clay previously served as CBC’s Senior Vice President of Clinical Operations
from October 2000 through May 2002. During 1997, until joining the Company, Mr. Clay worked as a behavioral
healthcare consultant specializing in adapting managed care technology to public sector services for providers and
behavioral healthcare organizations. From January 1991 through July 1997, Mr. Clay served in a variety of executive
positions for Tarrant County Mental Health Mental Retardation Services in Fort Worth, Texas. Mr. Clay received a Master
of Social Work degree from Tulane University and a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Psychology from the University of Texas
at Austin.
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PAUL R. MCCARTHY, Ph.D., age 46. Dr. McCarthy rejoined the Company in June 2002 to serve as Chief
Operating Officer for Comprehensive Behavioral Care, Inc. From January 2000 through May 2002, Dr. McCarthy was
employed by Cigna Behavioral Health (“Cigna”) in Tampa, Florida where as Director of Regional Operations he was
responsible for the oversight of operational and financial aspects for two of Cigna’s largest operating units.  Prior to
joining Cigna, Dr. McCarthy was employed by the Company from February 1998 through January 2000. Dr. McCarthy has
also served as Vice President of Quality Improvement and Outcomes Management for Green Spring Health
Services/Magellan Health Services from February 1996 through February 1998. Dr. McCarthy holds a Masters Degree in
Psychology from Villanova University and a Ph.D. from Pennsylvania State University.

CATHY J. WELCH, CPA, age 43. Ms. Welch has been employed by the Company since February 1998, having
served as Controller since February 1999 and Vice President of Finance and Controller since July 1999. In January 2000,
Ms. Welch was appointed to the position of Corporate Secretary for the Company. Prior to her employment with
CompCare, Ms. Welch served in a variety of financial positions for Columbia/HCA hospitals from November 1993 through
June 1997. Ms. Welch, a Certified Public Accountant, received a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Business Administration from
the University of South Florida.

EUGENE L. FROELICH, CPA, age 61. In January 2003, the Board of Directors appointed Mr. Froelich to fill an
existing vacancy for a Class I Director until the expiration date of the term for this director seat, which is currently the
2005 Annual Meeting. Additionally, Mr. Froelich is the Chairman of the Company’s Audit Committee and he is the Audit
Committee Financial Expert as that term is defined under General Rules and Regulations under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended. He also serves on the Company’s Compensation Committee. Mr. Froelich has more than 30 years of
financial experience and has served as an executive to several publicly held healthcare, entertainment, and high tech
corporations and is currently working as a consultant in these industries. From April 2001 to October 2001, Mr. Froelich
served as Chief Financial Officer of Futurelink Corp., a publicly traded company, engaged in the technology information
sector. Futurelink Corp. had filed for protection under Chapter 11 of the federal bankruptcy code in August 2001 and, -
following such filing, Mr. Froelich voluntarily resigned his position with Futurelink Corp. From July 2000 to April 2001,
Mr. Froelich was Chief Financial Officer of Wizshop.com, a private company, engaged in the Internet retail business.

From 1998 to 2000, Mr. Froelich acted as an independent consultant and advisor to various corporations. During the period
from 1989 to 1998, Mr. Froelich was Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice President of Maxicare Health Plans, Inc.
(“Maxicare"), a publicly traded corporation operating under Chapter 11 of the federal bankruptcy code at the time Mr.
Froelich joined Maxicare in 1989.

HOWARD A. SAVIN, Ph.D,, age 57. In June 2002, Dr. Savin was appointed as a Class II director, with his
current term expiring at the 2005 Annual Meeting, to fill an existing vacancy of the Board of Directors. Additionally, Dr.
Savin is the Chairman of the Company’s Compensation Committee and he serves on the Company’s Audit Committee. Dr.
Savin is currently Senior Vice President of Clinical Affairs at the Devereux Foundation, an organization engaged in
providing high-quality human services to children, adults, and families with special needs that derive from behavioral,
psychological, intellectual or neurological impairments. Dr. Savin has served the Devereux Foundation in this capacity
since July 1995. From November 1993 to December 1994, Dr. Savin served as Vice President of Medco Behavioral Care
Corp., which later became Merit Behavioral Health and Magellan. Dr. Savin holds a Masters Degree in Psychology from
the University of Bridgeport and a Ph.D. from the University of Georgia.
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COMPREHENSIVE CARE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS WITH EXECUTIVES

On February 7, 2003 the Company entered into a new employment agreement with Mary Jane Johnson,
superceding the previous agreement signed in July of 1999. The new agreement commenced February 1, 2003,
terminates May 31, 2006 and is subject to two 18-month extensions. Ms. Johnson’s employment agreement
provides for her salary to increase from $175,000 to $205,000 per annum beginning June 1, 2003 and includes an
annual performance bonus based on the Company’s earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization
(“EBITDA”). Such annual performance bonus shall be equal to the greater of 2 4% of the Company’s EBITDA,
or $25,000. Ms. Johnson is provided an auto allowance of $250 biweekly as well as a policy of life insurance.

In addition, the Company pays for a portion of Ms. Johnson’s health insurance and other group insurance
premiums in accordance with the Company’s general benefit guidelines covering all full-time employees. Ms.
Johnson’s employment agreement provides that in the event of a change in control of the Company, or in the
case of termination without cause, Ms. Johnson will be paid a severance benefit equal to twenty four (24) months
base salary, together with her performance bonus. Ms. Johnson is additionally eligible to receive a special
transaction bonus should the company merge with or into another entity in which the Company is not the
surviving entity, or if the Company sells all or substantially all of its assets and the special transaction is $5.0
million or greater. The special transaction bonus shall be an amount equal to 1% of the special transaction value
in excess of $5.0 million. Effective with the 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and annually coincident with
such meetings, Ms. Johnson will be granted options to purchase 25,000 shares of the Company’s common stock.
The options will bear an exercise price of the fair market value of the Company’s stock on the date of grant and
will vest within one year of such date. Ms. Johnson’s employment agreement may be terminated by either party
in accordance with its terms, which require written notification to the other party at least six months prior to the
initial termination date or renewal termination date.

On February 7, 2003, the Company entered into a new employment agreement with Robert J. Landis,
superceding a predecessor agreement dated September 14, 1998. The new agreement commenced February 1,
2003, terminates May 31, 2006 and is subject to two 18-month extensions. Mr. Landis’ employment agreement
provides for his salary to increase from $175,000 to $185,000 per annum beginning June 1, 2003 and includes an
annual performance bonus based on the Company’s earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization
(“EBITDA™). Such annual performance bonus shall be equal to the greater of 2 /2% of the Company’s EBITDA,
or $20,000. In addition, the Company pays for a portion of Mr. Landis’ health insurance and other group
insurance premiums in accordance with the Company’s general benefit guidelines covering all full-time
employees. Mr. Landis is also provided with a policy of life insurance and a $250 biweekly auto allowance. Mr.
Landis’ employment agreement provides that in the event of a change in control of the Company or in the case
of termination without cause, Mr. Landis will be paid a severance benefit equal to twenty four (24) months base
salary, together with his performance bonus. Mr. Landis is additionally eligible to receive a special transaction
bonus should the company merge with or into another entity in which the Company is not the surviving entity, or
if the Company sells all or substantially all of its assets and the special transaction is $5.0 million or greater. The
special transaction bonus shall be an amount equal to 1% of the special transaction value in excess of $5.0
million. Effective with the 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and annually coincident with such meetings,
Mr. Landis will be granted options to purchase 25,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. The options will
bear an exercise price of the fair market value of the Company’s stock on the date of grant and will vest within
one year of such datec. Mr. Landis’ employment agreement may be terminated by either party in accordance with
its terms, which require written notification to the other party at least six months prior to the initial termination
date or renewal termination date.

On June 3, 2002, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Thomas Clay. Mr. Clay’s
employment agreement provides for a salary at the rate of $120,000 per annum and includes a performance-
based bonus not to exceed $20,000 per annum, which will be based 20% on individual performance and 80% on
the Company’s financial performance against set criteria. Mr. Clay is provided with a policy of life insurance
and the Company pays for a portion of Mr. Clay’s health insurance and other group insurance premiums in
accordance with the Company’s general benefit guidelines covering all full-time employees. Mr. Clay’s
employment agreement provides that, in the event of a change in control of the Company as defined, Mr. Clay
will be paid a severance benefit equal to six (6) months base salary or, in the case of termination without cause,
Mr. Clay will be paid a severance benefit equal to three (3) months base salary. Mr. Clay’s employment
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agreement continues unless terminated by either party in accordance with the terms of the employment
agreement.

On June 3, 2002, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Paul R. McCarthy, Ph.D.
Dr. McCarthy’s employment agreement provides for a salary at the rate of $120,000 per annum and includes a
performance-based bonus not to exceed $20,000 per annum, which will be based 20% on individual performance
and 80% on the Company’s financial performance against set criteria. Dr. McCarthy is provided with a policy of
life insurance and the Company pays for a portion of Dr. McCarthy’s health insurance and other group insurance
premiums in accordance with the Company’s general benefit guidelines covering all full-time employees. Dr.
McCarthy’s employment agreement provides that, in the event of a change in control of the Company as defined,
Dr. McCarthy will be paid a severance benefit equal to six (6) months base salary or, in the case of termination
without cause, Dr. McCarthy will be paid a severance benefit equal to three (3) months base salary. Dr.
McCarthy’s employment agreement continues unless terminated by either party in accordance with the terms of
the employment agreement.

Effective July 2, 1999, the Board awarded stay bonuses to Ms. Johnson and Mr. Landis in amounts not
to exceed the greater of: $150,000 or 85% of the current base salary, and $125,000 or 83% of the current base
salary, respectively, not payable unless each remained employed by the Company through December 31, 2000.
Effective January 1, 2001, Ms. Johnson and Mr. Landis each were entitled to receive $150,000 and $145,250,
respectively, in connection with these stay bonus awards. As an accommodation to the Company, the two
executive officers consented to a deferral of the receipt of their stay bonus. During Fiscal 2001, Ms. Johnson and
Mr. Landis each were paid $50,000. During Fiscal 2002, Ms. Johnson was paid $100,000 and Mr. Landis,
$50,000. In the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003, Mr. Landis received $15,250 related to this bonus.

Effective July 6, 2001, a restricted stock grant of 20,000 shares, 19,500 shares, and 5,000 shares of the
Company’s Common Stock was made to Ms. Johnson, Mr. Landis, and Mr. Clay, respectively, and was included
in Fiscal 2002 executive compensation. Such shares were valued at $0.51 per share, representing the fair market
value of the Company’s Common Stock on July 6, 2001. During Fiscal 2003, Dr. McCarthy was awarded two
restricted stock grants for a total of 20,001 shares of the Company’s Common Stock to be included in Fiscal
2003 executive compensation. The initial award was for 6,667 shares, valued at $1.50 per share, representing the
fair market value of the Company’s Common Stock on June 3, 2002. The second award to Dr. McCarthy was
for 13,334 shares, valued at $0.75 per share, representing the fair market value of the Company's Common Stock
on September 5, 2002.

INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

In connection with the Company’s indemnification program for executive officers and directors, Ms.
Johnson, Mr. Landis, Mr. Clay, and Dr. McCarthy as well as seven current, key management employees,
directors, or subsidiary directors, nine former directors, and ten former executive officers, are entitled to
indemnification and are beneficiaries of the officers and directors indemnification trust (as defined below).

Upon written demand for payment by the person designated in the Trust Agreement as Beneficiary
Representative accompanied by a “Notice of Qualification” (as defined below), the Trustee shall pay the person
designated in the Trust Agreement (“Underwriter”) to administer the payments to the accounts of Indemnitees an
amount not greater than the balance, if any, of the specified bookkeeping account (“Account”) recorded by the
Trustee for each Indemnitee. A “Notice of Qualification” is a written statement by the Beneficiary
Representative which (i) states the date and action on which the policyholder is obligated to Indemnitee(s) under
the terms of the Indemnification Agreement, (ii) certifies that, pursuant to the terms of the Indemnification
Agreement, the Indemnitees are entitled to payment thereunder as a result of the investigation, claim, action, suit
or proceeding, and (iii) states the amount of the payment to which the Underwriter is entitled. Upon the receipt
of a demand, the Trustee shall promptly inform the Company of such receipt, by courier delivery to the
Company, of written notice thereof. Subject to any contrary order issued by a court of competent jurisdiction, a
payment made pursuant to this Section may be made without the approval or direction of the Company, and shall
be made despite any direction to the contrary by the Company. Prior to the time amounts are to be paid to the
Underwriter or his designee from the Trust Fund as described above, Indemnitees have no preferred claim or
beneficial ownership interest in trust funds, and their rights are merely unsecured contractual rights.
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The Company considers it desirable to provide each Indemnitee with specified assurances that the
Company can and will honor the Company's obligations under the Indemnification Agreements, including a

policy of insurance to provide for directors and officers liability coverage.

TABLE II — OPTIONS HELD AT MAY 31, 2003

The following tables present information regarding the number of unexercised options held by the
Company’s named executives at May 31, 2003. No options were exercised by any named executive during
Fiscal 2003. Further, no stock appreciation rights were granted or held by such persons during Fiscal 2003.

OPTION GRANTS IN THE LAST FISCAL YEAR

Percent of Total

Options/SARS Exercise
Granted to or Base Grant Date
Options Employees in Price Expiration Present
Name Granted Fiscal Year ($/Share) Date Value

Mary Jane Johnson 25,000 13.1% $ 51 11/07/12 $0.3771
25,000 13.1% $ 140 02/07/13 $1.0351

Robert J. Landis 25,000 13.1% $ 51 11/07/12 $0.3771
25,000 13.1% $ 140 02/07/13 $1.0351

Thomas Clay 10,000 5.2% § 51 11/07/12 $0.3771
10,000 5.2% $ 195 02/26/13 $1.4417

Paul R. McCarthy * 10,000 52% $ 51 11/07/12 $0.3771
10,000 5.2% $ 195 02/26/13 $ 14417

*Rejoined the Company effective May 28, 2002.

The present value as of the date of grant, calculated using the Black-Scholes method is based on
assumptions about future interest rates, stock price volatility and dividend yield. There is no assurance that these
assumptions will prove to be true in the future. The actual value, if any, that may be realized by each individual
will depend upon the market price of the Common Stock on the date of exercise.

AGGREGATED OPTION EXERCISES IN LAST FISCAL YEAR
AND AGGREGATED FISCAL YEAR-END OPTION VALUE

Number of
Securities Value of
Underlying Unexercised In-
Unexercised the-money
Options/SARs at Options/SARs at
Shares Value FY End (#) FY End ()
Acquired on Realized Exercisable/ Exercisable/
Name Exercise (#) 3] Unexercisable Unexercisable®
Mary Jane Johnson -- - 232,500/37,500 $514,018/$63,625
Robert J. Landis - - 278,125/37,500 $514,018/$63,625
Thomas Clay -- - 32,500/15,000 $67,260/$19,950

Paul R. McCarthy®

5,000/15,000

$11,450/$19,950

(1) Calculated on the basis of the closing sale price per share for the Company’s Common Stock on the Over The Counter Bulletin Board of
$2.80 on May 30, 2003. Value was calculated on the basis of the difference between the option price and $2.80 multiplied by the number of
shares of Common Stock underlying the respective options.

(2) Rejoined the Company effective May 28, 2002.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth certain information known to the Company concerning the beneficial
ownership of Common Stock as of May 31, 2003, by (i) all persons who are beneficial owners of five percent
(5%) or more of the Common Stock, (ii) each director of the Company, and (iii) the executive officers named in
the Summary Compensation Table included elsewhere herein, and (iv) all directors and executive officers as a
group in accordance with Section 13(d)(3) under the general rules and regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) Act of 1934, as amended. According to rules adopted by the SEC, a person is
the “beneficial owner” of securities if he or she has, or shares, the power to vote such securities or to direct their
investment. Unless otherwise indicated, each of the stockholders has sole voting and investment power with
respect to shares beneficially owned.

SHARES PERCENT OF
BENEFICIALLY COMMON STOCK
NAME OF BENEFICIAL OWNER OWNED OUTSTANDING

Mary Jane Johnson® 252,500 6.1%
Robert J. Landis @ 308,125 7.3%
Thomas Clay @ 37,500 *
Paul R. McCarthy @ 25,001 *
Howard A. Savin® 10,833 *

*

Eugene L. Froelich® -
All executive officers and directors
As a group (7 persons) ® 698,959 15.4%

*Less than 1%.

M Includes 5,000 shares of common stock held directly and 32,500 shares subject to options that are presently exercisable. Excludes
15,000 options that are not presently exercisable.

@ Includes 20,000 shares of common stock held directly and 232,500 shares subject to options that are presently exercisable. Excludes
37,500 options that are not presently exercisable.

®  Includes 30,000 shares of common stock held directly and 278,125 shares subject to options that are presently exercisable. Excludes
37,500 options that are not presently exercisable.

@ ncludes 20,001 shares of common stock held directly and 5,000 shares subject to options that are presently exercisable. Excludes
15,000 options that are not presently exercisable.

& Includes 10,833 options that are presently exercisable. Excludes 25,833 options that are not presently exercisable.

©®  No options are presently exercisable. Excludes 20,833 options that are not presently exercisable.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The following table summarizes share and exercise price information with respect to the Company’s equity
compensation plans (including individual compensation arrangements) under which equity securities of
Comprehensive Care Corporation are authorized for issuance as of May 31, 2003:

(a) (b) (c)
Number of securities to Weighted-average Number of securities remaining
Plan category be issued upon exercise exercise price of available for future issuance
of outstanding options, outstanding options, under equity compensation
warrants and rights warrants and rights plans (excluding securities
reflected in column (a))
Equity compensation plans 1,109,224 $0.88 444,235
approved by shareholders
Equity compensation plans not
quity comp P 92.500 3.48 -

approved by shareholders*
Total 1,201,724

*Consists of warrants to purchase common stock of the Company issued to three consultants, in lieu of cash compensation, for services
provided to the Company. :

444,235

——sme

]
oo

,.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

For information relating to the employment agreements with executive officers, stock options, stay
bonuses, stock grants, and other compensation, see the information included in Item 11 above. During the fiscal
year ended May 31, 2003, two executive officers served on the Board of Directors of the Company and, also, on
the Board of Directors for each of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary corporations.

ITEM 14. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of the Company's Disclosure Controls and Internal Controls. Within the 90 days prior to filing
this report on Form 10-K, the Company evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of its "disclosure
controls and procedures” ("Disclosure Controls"), and its "internal controls and procedures for financial
reporting” ("Internal Controls"). This evaluation (the "Controls Evaluation") was done under the supervision and
with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer ("CEOQ") and Chief Financial Officer ("CFO"). Rules
adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) require that in this section of the Annual Report
on Form 10-K we present the conclusions of the CEO and the CFO about the effectiveness of our Disclosure
Controls and Internal Controls based on and as of the date of the Controls Evaluation.

Disclosure Controls and Internal Controls. As provided in Rule 13a-14 of the General Rules and Regulations
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, Disclosure Controls are defined as meaning controls
and procedures that are designed with the objective of insuring that information required to be disclosed in our
reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), is recorded,
processed, designed and reported within the time periods specified by the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure
Controls include, within the definition under the Exchange Act, and without limitation, controls and procedures
designed to insure that information required to be disclosed by us in our reports is accumulated and
communicated to our management including our CEO and CFO, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding disclosure. [nternal Controls are procedures which are designed with the objective of providing
reasonable assurance that (1) our transactions are properly authorized; (2) our assets are safeguarded against
unauthorized or improper use; and (3) our transactions are properly recorded and reported, all to permit the
preparation of our financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Scope of the Controls Evaluation. The evaluation made by our CEO and CFO of our Disclosure Controls and
our Internal Controls included a review of the controls’ objectives and design, the controls' implementation by
the Company and the effect of the controls on the information generated for use in this Form 10-K. In the course
of the Controls Evaluation, we sought to identify data errors, control problems or acts of fraud and to confirm
that appropriate corrective action, including process improvements, were being undertaken. This type of
evaluation will be done on a quarterly basis so that the conclusions concerning controls effectiveness can be
reported in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Annual Report on Form 10-K. The overall goals of these
various evaluation activities are to monitor our Disclosure Controls and our Internal Controls and to make
modifications as necessary; our intent in this regard is that the Disclosure Controls and the Internal Controls will
be maintained as dynamic systems that change (including with improvements and corrections) as conditions
warrant.

Among other matters, we sought in our evaluation to determine whether there were any "significant deficiencies”
or "material weaknesses" in the Company's Internal Controls, or whether the Company had identified any acts of
fraud involving personnel who have a significant role in the Company's Internal Controls. In the professional
auditing literature, "significant deficiencies" are referred to as "reportable conditions"; these are control issues
that could have a significant adverse effect on the ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data
in the financial statements. A "material weakness" is defined in the auditing literature as a particularly serious
reportable condition where the internal control does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that
misstatements caused by error or fraud may occur in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial
statements and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions. We also sought to deal with other controls matters in the Controls Evaluation, and in each
case if a problem was identified, we considered what revision, improvement and/or correction to make in
accordance with our on-going procedures.
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The Company's management, including the CEO and CFOQ, does not expect that our Disclosure Controls or our
Internal Controls will prevent all errors and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed and
operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the control system's objectives will be met.
Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of
controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no
evaluation of centrols can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within
the Company have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-
making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake. Controls can also be
circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management
override of the controls. The design of any system of controls is based in part upon certain assumptions about
the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated
goals under all potential future conditions. Over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions or deterioration in the degree of compliance with its policies or procedures. Because of the inherent
limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

In accordance with SEC requirements, our CEQ and CFO each have confirmed that, since the date of the
Controls Evaluation to the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, there have been no significant changes in
Internal Controls or in other factors that could significantly affect Internal Controls, including any corrective
actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Conclusion. Based upon the Controls Evaluation, our CEO and CFO have each concluded that our Disclosure
Controls are effective to ensure that material information relating to the Company and its consolidated
subsidiaries is made known to management, including the CEO and CFO, particularly during the period when
our periodic reports are being prepared, and that our Internal Controls are effective to provide reasonable
assurance that our financial statements are fairly presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles.

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a) 1. Financial Statements - Included in Part 11 of this report:
Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants
Consolidated Balance Sheets, May 31, 2003 and 2002
Consolidated Statements of Operations, Years Ended May 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Deficit, Years Ended May 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, Years Ended May 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Financial Statement Schedules: None.

Other schedules are omitted, as required information is inapplicable or the information is presented in
the consolidated financial statements or related notes.

3. Exhibits:
Number Description and Reference
3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation as amended. ©

3.2 Restated Bylaws as amended July 20, 2000. ®

4.1 Indenture dated April 25, 1985 between the Company and Bank of America, NT&SA,
relating to Convertible Subordinated Debentures. )

4.2 Form of Common Stock Certificate. ©

10.1 Form of Stock Option Agreement. *®

10.2 Form of Indemnity Agreement as amended March 24, 1994, *®

10.3 Directors and Officers Trust dated February 27, 1995 between the Company and Mark
Twain Bank. *®
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10.4 Comprgglensive Care Corporation 1995 Incentive Plan, as amended on November 17,
1998.

10.5 Amended and Restated Non-Employee Director’s Stock Option Plan. *¢

10.6 Employment agreement as amended February 7, 2003 between the Company and
Robert J. Landis. *”

10.7 Employment agreement as amended February 7, 2003 between the Company and
Mary Jane Johnson. *” ‘

10.8 Employment agreement dated June 3, 2002 between the Company and Paul R.
McCarthy. *'%

10.9 E(T)Ployment agreement dated June 3, 2002 between the Company and Thomas C. Clay.
*

10.10  Comprehensive Care Corporation 2002 Incentive Plan. "

14 Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (filed herewith).
21 List of the Company’s active subsidiaries (filed herewith).
23 Consent of Eisner LLP (filed herewith).
99.1 Comprehensive Care Corporation CEO Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith).
99.2 Comprehensive Care Corporation CFO Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,

as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith).

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement with one or more directors or executive officers.

(1) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Form S-3 Registration Statement No. 2-97160.

(2) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 1988.
(3) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 1994.
(4) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 1995.
(5) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 1995.
(6) Filed with original filing of Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated January 29, 1997.
(7) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 8-K dated February 7, 2003.

(8) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-K for the Fiscal Year ended May 31, 2000.
(9) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 8-K dated November 25, 1998.

(10) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 8-K dated June 7, 2002.

(11) Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Form 8-K, dated September 20, 2002.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K.

1) The Company filed a current report on Form 8-K, dated March 3, 2003, to report under Item 5 that the
Company had fully satisfied the “Offer in Compromise” with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) and,
additionally, that the Company reached a settlement agreement with its former tax advisor with respect to the
fees previously paid by the Company to the advisor.

2) The Company filed a current report on Form 8-K, dated May 8, 2003, to report under Item 5 that the

Company’s Central U.S. Service Center, located in Bloomfield Hills, Michigan, was awarded a contract by the
second largest Medicaid qualified health plan in Michigan.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Sections 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Company has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized,
September 5, 2003.

COMPREHENSIVE CARE CORPORATION

By /s/  MARY JANE JOHNSON
Mary Jane Johnson
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

By /s/  ROBERT J. LANDIS
Robert J. Landis
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the Company and in the capacities and on the dates so indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE

President, Chief Executive Officer,
/s’ _MARY JANE JOHNSON and Director September 5, 2003
Mary Jane Johnson

Chairman of the Board of Directors,

Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer

(Principal Financial and
/s/ ROBERT J. LANDIS Accounting Officer) September 5, 2003
Robert J. Landis

/s/ HOWARD A. SAVIN Director September 5, 2003
Howard A. Savin

/s' _EUGENE L. FROELICH Director September 5, 2003
Eugene L. Froelich
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